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Photo from Donald Hubbard Estate 

Front Row - Kenneth Hitchcock, Jimmie Buss, Burleigh Booker, 

Stanley Kmiec, Bruce Bellows, Gail Stowell, Francine Gardner, 

Marie Hatch. 

Back Row - Roy Miller, Rowena Crosby, Marshall Benware, 

Paul Monty. 

TOWN REPORT COVER PICTURE - 

Forristal Four Corners - Jct. RTE 123, Cooper Hill and 

Allen Mine Road . In foreground is the Forristal Sawmill 
which manufactured lumber and chair stock. To the right is 
the Joseph Forristal farm and outbuildings - since owned by 
Spooner, Blake and Pecora. Halfway up hill on the Forristal 
Road is the Miles Farm, now owned by Miss Florece Kennedy. 

A the top left’ is school’no. 6 = the Forristal eschooe, 
later owned by Forrest Pratt and currently owned by Reginald 

Clark. 



TOWN INFORMATION 

Selectmen 835-2986 
Meet Tuesday - 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 

Town Clerk - Tax Collector 835-2242 

Monday - Tuesday 1:00 to 4:30 p.m. 
Wednesday - 9:00 a.m. to Noon, 1:00 to 4:30 p.m. 
Thursday - 1:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. 

Planning Board - Second Tuesday of the month at 8:00 p.m. 

Zoning Board of Adjustment - First Monday of the month at 7:30p.m. 

Zoning Officer - 835-6815 

Conservatipn Commission - First Wednesday of the month 7:00 p.m. 

Fire Department 

Executive Board meets first Monday of month at 7:00 p.m. 
Regular meeting - second Monday at 7:00 p.m. 
Rescue Squad meets - third Wednesday of the month at 7:00 p.m. 

Drills are held on the fourth Monday of month at 7:00 p.m. 

Library Hours 
Winter Hours start November 1 
Wednesday 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
Thursday and Friday 1:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Summer Hours start May 1 
Monday and Friday - 1:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Wednesday 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
Trustees meet 3rd Wednesday of month at 7:00 p.m. 

Transfer Station Hours 
Monday and Wednesday 1:00 to 5:00 p.m. 
Saturday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Town Highway Garage 835-2428 
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
TOWN WARRANT 

To the inhabitants of the Town of Alstead in the County of 

Cheshire, in said State, qualified ta vate in Town affairs: 

You are hereby netified ta meet at the Municipal Building in 

said Alstead on Tuesday, the 10th day of March, next at 1:00 

p.m. Palme Wiens Oe ODEN UNtE Ley - ao. soca The business 

meeting ta be halden at 7:30 p.m. ta act on the following: 

Article 1: Ta chease all necessary Town Officers far the 

ensuing year. 

Article 2: Tao see if the Town is in favor af adapting the 

zoning amendments as propesed by the Planning 

Reoard. (Official Ballot Voted 

Article 3: Toa see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen 

ta sell and convey any real estate acquired by 

tax liens, by auction, sealed bid ar any private 

sale or in any other manner as justice may 

require. Furthermore, to authorize the Selectmen 

ta employ agents and attorneys in furtherance oaf 

any such sale. 

Article 4: Tam see if the Town will vate ta authorize the 

Selectmen ta apply for, accept and expend maney 

fram State, Federal or anather gavernment unit oar 

private source which becomes available during the 

year in accordance with the precedures set forth 

rah geet eh Poy Bes bel) =e 

Article S: Ta see if the Tawn will vote ta raise and 

appropriate the sum of $15,900.00 ta put in the 

Mapital Feserve Fund ts be used for the appraisal 

af all preperty in Alstead, either by the N.H. 
Tax Commission or a reliable company doing such 

appraisals. The additional cost of appraisals ta 

be raised at futir> Town Meetings. 

Aacic Lesos To see if the Town will vote toa raise and 

appropriate the sum of $9,500.00 far the suppert 

of the Home Health Care and Community Services. 

Article 7: Tao see if the Tawn will. vate to raise and 

apprepriate the sum of $1725.00 far the suppart 

af the Manadnack Family Mental Health Service. 

Article 8: Ta see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen 

ta borraw money in anticipation of taxes if 

yy. 



Article 9: Toa see if the Town will vate ta raise and 

appropriate the following sums for items and 

purpeses listed: 

a: Maintenance/FRepair of Town Buildings %$ 21,300.00 

b: Bands for Town Officers, Liability 39,000,00 
Property Insurance 

cs: For interest on Long Term and 10,516.00 

Temporary Notes 

d: For Employee Benefits 25,000.00 

e: For Street/Flashing lights 7,000.00 

f: Far Damage and Legal Expense 3,900.00 

q: For Emergency Management 99.00 

Hh: For Executive Office Expense 24,000.00 

i: For Electian/Registration and 
Vital Statistics (Town Clerk) 13,000.00 

Jj: For Finance Office Expense (Tax Coll, 

Treasurer etc.) 25,000.00 

k: Health Officer 200.00 

1: Ambulance Expense 2,000.00 

m: Maintenance Highway/Br idges 210,000.00 

ns Tawn Assistance 12,000.00 

a: Planning and Zeaning 4,200.00 

p: Conservation Commission 300.00 

q: Cemetery Maintenance 1,000.00 

us Farks and Recreation 3,500.00 

Vv: Library 7,900.00 
ws For Police pratectican 19,000.00 

Ko roruou tri. er 300.00 

y: Memerial Day Observance 185.00 

z: Payment Lang Term Note/Lease 28,341.00 

aa: For Fire Protection 19,000.00 

Dot horvPorest his ev rrovecnicn 300.00 

ecs Selid Waste Disposal BS,900.00 

dd: Fegieonal and Assoc dues 2,400.00 

$ 584,792.00 

Article 10: To see if the Tawn will authorize the Selectmen 

ta sell any excess Town Equipment. 

Article 11: Ta see if the Tawn will vote ta raise and 

appreapriate the sum of $10,590.00 tu be placed 

in a Capital Feserve Fund te used for the 

frsllaowing: 

as $3,500.00 - Purchase of Fire Dept Equip. 

bs $3,500.90 - Purchase Ambulance Equip. 

re $5,000,000 (— Fallice Dept.  Eoutn, 

Article 12: To see if the Town will vate toa allow the 

Selectmen ta enter intca a Z@ year lease far 

the rent an the Town Offices with saptiaon tea 

renew for additional 2 year pericd. 



Awol oLew. ss 

AY tacle, l¢4s 

Article 15: 

Article 16: 

Article 1/7: 

Article 18: 

Amt elemsls 

AYacnclewcO: 

To see if the Town will vate ta enter inta 
a S year lease tc purchase a 4 wheel 

drive truck to replace the GMC 1 ton, fear 

approx. $9,200.00 per year. The $9,200.00 

appropriation ta be taken from Current Surplus as 
provided by RSA 35:5. 

Ta see if the Town will vote ta raise and 

appropriate the sum of $2,700.00 ta be 

placed in a Capital Reserve Fund to be used for 

sandblasting and painting of the Vilas Pool 

bridge. Additienal costs Cappraox $6,300.00) 

tc be raised at future Town Meetings. The 
$2,700.00 appropriation ta be taken fram 

Current Surplus as provided by RSA 35-S. 

Tao see if the Town will vote to raise and 

appropriate the sum of $10,600.00 ta be placed 

in a Special Revenue Fund ta be administered 

by the Selectmen for the maintenance of the 

Recycling Pregram. All future fees collected at 

the Transfer Station ta be applied toa this fund. 

The $10,600.00 appreapriatican to be taken fram 

Current Surplus as previded by RSA S3S:5. 

Ta see if the Town will vate ta change the 

pesitian af the Highway Roaad Agent from elected 

ta appointed; thereby autherizing the Selectmen 

to appeint ane or more highway agents with an 

annual review, in accordance with FSA 231:62- 

Be bos 

Ta see if the Teawn will vote ta change the 

elected term of office for the highway road 
agent fram one year to a term of 3S years. 

Ta see if the Town will vate ta raise 

an appropriate the sum of $7,500.00 far the 

purchase of a computer and seaftware far the Tawn 

Clerk’s office. (By Petitian) $7500.00 

appropriation to be taken fram Current Surplus 

as provided by RSA 35:5. 

Tao see if the town will raise and appropriate 

the sum of $20,000.00 ta cantinue the read work 

an the Hill Road. 

Tao see if the Town will raise and apprepriate 

the sum af $2,900.00 for the purchase of Map 11 

Lot 118, 2.94 acres from Harry Neal for 

drainage, to protect cur streets from future 

erasian. 



Article 

Article 

zZ1ls 

~ 
> AF 25's 

Tao see if the Town will vote ta change the 

appointed positions far the Planning Board and 
Zoning Board of Adjustment to elected positions 
as future terms expire, terms tc be as follows: 

Three (3) PLanning Board members and alter- 
nates to be elected for the first year; 

Twa €2) Planning Board members and alter- 

nates ta be elected for the second and 

third year. All terms for three ¢S3) years. 

Twa (2) Zoning Beard of Adjustment members 

and one (1) alternate t= be elected for the 
first and second year; one (1) Zoning Board af 

Adjustment member and one (1) alternate ta be 
elected for the third year. All Terms for 

three (3) years. (By Petition) 

Tao see if the Town will vote ta authorize the 
Maderator ta choose a committee of S (five) ta 

study the needs cof the Fire Department and 

report back at the annual meeting in March 1993. 

This committee will consist of: 1 Fire Chief 
1 Fire Commissioner, 1 Assistant Fire Chief and 
2 Taxpayers. 

To transact any other business that may legally 

came befare this meeting. 

James O’Brien 

Betty Woodell 

Clarence Meyer 

Selectmen of Alstead 



Budget of the Town of Alstead 
Appropraitions and Estimates of Revenues 

For the Ensuing Year 
January 145 1992 to; December (31,7 14992 

Appropriations Actual APPROPRIATIONS 
PURPOSES OF APPROPRIATION Current Year Expenditures ENSUING FISCAL 

Acct. (RSA 31:4) (omit cents) Current Year YEAR 
(omit cents! (omit cents) 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

4140 Election. Registration, & Vital Statistics 

4150 Financial Administration 

4191 Planning and Zoning 

4194 General Government Building 

4195 Cemetenes 

ee a | 4199 Other GeneralGovernment | teeter Set Pon, 
errr tees APE Yeogie ge oes a enter pr ae te 
es Oana 0 eee eee vet ten Somers [ee Pere) 1) 00 Orne imemmer G7 G00 re freer 1 (00077) 

421§ Ambulance Donations /Def ib Dan DS ee eee 
4220_Fue | ee 

aaa2 peo ren tb rend ves <2 oh ot | Od ee IS cee 
eta s0 vere roency-Management:-<sivrctcn = ss] Mee [itn Ol nin Biel ON" Pare PERSO 

2 os Saas eee ea pate c MIGHWAYS'ANO STREETS Spt iti cet ate ufiieMtee sve DANO payee SA ANS 
ew Ho 240, OOO oY 96,526 0, 000 

SC Ne eS AP Ol Page PIR UR RUN PRES AT 
p42 AG Sy aet Lighling < mythos vinta se: Prepon fem cme hg VOOR hI YUE 
inate AI re amen AF os wn were Rene rome ones Pe = Fe ee eS ed | 
Se a BEE Pe eT Ce es [aie cc 
ies ARMAS ANTTATION 2.252 90.2 106 vic SAMY ER hee eel Oe ee Hegel | 
biA323.4S0hd Waste Collection nt Rl Beater een Sr eal 

4324 Sold Waste Disposal Recycling MOOS = SITs 91,709 | 83,000 
ie Ge PERT ESITT] POPE R, (a ETE 
SS aoe ee oe ee a 
x ones Sere oa! Eh Oe ey Pe ewe Gao one tecae 

Foie! ine Re Pe ee 
| "WATER DISTRIBUTION AND TREATMENT | DISTRIBUTION AND TREATMENT pf 

4332 Water Services Elie lew clans pklbebncctoainetete 
IE ASSERT Tre aliTigAg! Sek er Ser eee ent ine reeerer en + ity All epee a a8 Metee share iy HO THIF | 

We OVE ALT iste Ss 2 ine |e Raa EOL 
4414 PestConvol Animal Officer a ES a I hes Ei. ceoeieme 
4415 Health Agencies and Hospitals. i Lael Piees | 11,206 | ROPE 

4416 Health Officer rar 200 2 oe ie ee 20) 2) | 
erzet 

= Tet) Ee Pia eee 
ie. [al tao en Ii} 

WELFARE Rea | | 
4442 Direct Assistance ia | 10,000 | 8,763 | thadohe 
4444 Intergovernmental Wellare Payments Gs) BT Re | 

Bit ERS a | 

[__fwetontecwrsomptcmen _____d_s541 047 ened Reon 
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PURPOSES OF APPROPRIATION 1 Yiceeietot wor AU. speneeya 11 Penntang ree 
(RSA 31:4) | {omit cents) | Current Year | YEAR 

| (omit cents) (omit cents) 

TAXES | 99 7 

| 4520. Parks and Recreation) hot | ie BA Si 25 OOM I 2,615 | $<; S00 
| 8550), Livebty iis ¢ Peir rt  hy A) e a 7,000 | 7,000) fo 2, 000m 
| .458)' Painone Purpeads ty 1h | 185 | 165. | 2 2 ee 
ages ee ayatigi pe fpo e 

ae ee es oe | 4612 Purchase ofNaturalResources ss | Ct YS | 
ea eo ee 
--~aeeevetamienr aaa neuen Poot [ee 

REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING TEE SE) ee 
SEES ee es LS, a a he 
ETRE es ees Rs (Ce RE 
| ECONOMIC OEVELOPMENT——————=S |} }§ —j—___—__—_|-_____— 
ere ere es ee | i) 2 ae 
a fp pep 
EEE ee oe ae bee DE sa 
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ie So DEBT SERVICE 6. craks A Beh ie oo [aah owe Ey Apa re oe eT rs) 
4711 Princ.-Long Term Bonds & Noles /Lease 26,610 26,610 fi. “128594 lam 

6,034 | 2,516 
} S23. teerent-on TAN Hn cule atepeen emis dite bls oh | 10,000 t—— 2822 | 8.000 
| apnabarey's <i pied a Teme ad aER ny ET | (AaAle | be 

CAPITAL OUTLAY BRS Se CO A eo 
I TORR] ORAS 
Cia CO Sal ere 
PARED) (OR ME ee 
Bi De EE 

; BES) DOE RR Ae 
99) Capital Outla pf} 
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT veuieets EE Te 

Ao1s_ To Catal Reseree Pures ff ff 
ATU LOM O PO Ce Pp { Amp: ance Biss a SE ja} 390 

Re-aAnpora a Ohm Pron RE ERICA al BRS TST aa iS 000 

Se aa aaa 
Ce RE, Se ed een A 
F 4906 Jo Trust and Agency Funds: ite i eee 
Sat) ft 
ft GN A a aad | 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS | s 690,679 | s 689,727 | 5 673,517 
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SOURCES OF REVENUE s RSTRIATEC AES) Piacey AC OAL ESTIMATED 
Current Year Current Year Ensuing Fiscal 
(omit cents) (omit cents) Year 

| 1991 9 92" 
| 3120 Land UseChangeTaxes TTS SS CS 000 
POLIT Ce ae a a (ES EP eee 
TRC a oe Ed ME ee oesee 7 008! 
EG UT Se a I Se By ye ees 
[3190_tnterest & Penaites on Delinquent Taxes | | > nog | 45992 | sn o00 
eameionyPanains: Se | Ce | a se Re yy eRe ee ne 
a 
3210 Business Licenses and Permits mee 9 avave ee ayy ae eae 

3220_Motor Vehicle Permit Fees To Rea ceed Eee Oo 000 
| 3290 Other Licenses. Permits &Fees | Th oS Pea ae 
aig ce EER COMERNMENT. Of 
RU re Ter eres 2 nee 
OS CLE ae Wee eee Dek nd IR Dae CC end a ee a 
eels esnared averse ied ery aro tas ay) See he 18 00 OSA tate: 20 5227) | ee 20,000 44 
| 33S3HighwayBlockGrant OO a7 99 49,000 | 
Bes LE eT aed Bl Wea VC ACE eee aS 
| 3356 State & Federal Forest Land Reimbursement |__| Jeo ta I aa | 157 
iasaee Fined Centrot Reimbursement <6 tami ..| al F pee epee Deere ee ees ye ee | 
So ON Ie 5 eee | (0008 tee “395027425 ) 4.000 
Seen EBON OTHER.GOVERNMENT ils! meie |S ee ee cea hf 

3379 Intergovernmental Revenues Donat ions /De Fi iG jad sno} —______ 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES Bea | os ae. 
3401 _Incorhe trom Departments FS ee ee ee ee eee Te 

0e_Grres Ghaiges.Transfer Station _{___f___4.900_ 8.167. } 3,000 
PMISBE MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES: 420+ /Gnn: [paige Ieee. A728 | 

3501 SHKMMunicipal Property (Rent o CA Dl 20 cheese 100) | 
3502 Interest on Investments le. 

a ee 
SS SS ee 
MOMORB ETA CHic eR VSN IA TS eet | el Legian ae eae | 
| 3916 TrustandAgencyFunds | 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES i) Lota 
"3934 Proc. trom Long Term Notes &B0nds | sit SSSCS@d a ae 
| = Fund Bane a2 ono tf _2-n00_}__20 noo 

TOTAL REVENUES ANO CREDITS | 357.800 400.676 Fe eed 

Total Appropriations $ 673,517 

Less: Amount of Estimated Revenues, Exclusive of Taxes sds ho Be ee BSW best ee 5. Slane 

Amount of Taxes to be Raised (Exclusive of School and County Taxes) $_ 297,760 

BUDGET OF THE TOWN OF ,N.H. | 
THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT 

-4- 
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INVENTORY OF PROPERTY VALUES 

1990 
Land S12, O96 43522 

Buildings MC ok CA 

Public Utilities 546.750 02 

Less Elderly & Blind 
Exemptions 

Net Assessed Valuation 

Taxes Committed to Collector: 

Town Property Taxes Assessed 

Less War Service Credit 

Net Property Tax Committment 

Tax Rate 

Net School Appropriation $1.33. A462 
County Tax Assessment be ee Tot BP 

SCHEDULE OF TOWN PROPERTY 

Town hall, Lands & Buildings 
Furniture & Equipment 
Library, Land & Buildings 
Furniture & Equipment 
Police Department & Equipment 
Fire Department, Land & Buildings 

E. Alstead 
Fire Department, Equipment 
Parks, Commons & Playgorunds 
Highway Department, Land & Buildings 
Highway Equipment 
Arch Pond Property 

M34 L130 
M47 Ll 
M51 L2 
M26 L2A 
M34 L19A 
M8 Lot 11 
Cemetery Equipment 
Maybelle Still Memorial Building 

if 

Pipe he Mii 
$13,603,,642% 
25,906), 5665 

546,350. 

30,000. 

$37,462,410 

$1,872, 7405 
7 g4508 

1, 86572968 

$49.99. 

S935 75u. 
19, 00G8 

263,400. 
30,000. 
25,000. 

14°,930. 
200,000. 
94,000. 

170,000. 
189,000. 
43,200. 
2 aot hs 

34,650. 
Shy atou. 
LL 4a04 

950. 
Oo, 4U0u 
6.22475, 

92, Gate 



SELECTMEN'S REPORT 

1991 proved to ba a busy year, with many changes taking 

place. After much discussion on what to do about space 
problems, we decided to look around and see what was 

offered. After advertising our needs and holding a 
public hearing, we voted to move to our present location. 

This was accomplished in the Fall, allowing the Police and 

Fire Chief to utilize the Selectmen/Town Clerk space. 

Anyone who has tried to work in limited space knows how hard 
this can be. 

We rented our present office space on a month to month basis 
but would like to enter into a two year lease with an option 
to renew for another two years, but we need your (the Voters) 
support to do this. Many have asked how we could afford this 
move. Well, we were fortunate to have a large savings in 
fuel Costs, by j3Oining the Fall Mt. (Regional School/District, to 
bid for our heating fuel. We anticipated buying fuel at 
$.95/gal. and were actually able to buy at $.64/gal, (a 

savings of Approx. $2,800.). The Police Chief also helped 
with these expenses by leaving approx. $2,000. in his budget 

to offset rent and moving costs. 

We would like to thank Warren Campbell, Molly Leonard, 

Vanessa Weymouth, Don and Helen Wood, and Chip Wood for 
their assistance in moving from one place to another. They 
all donated their time and it was greatly appreciated. 
Chip - Thank you for the use of your loader! 

We have level-funded the operating budget for 1992 with 
hopes we don't have any “emergencies.” The total budget is 
down by 104% to try to help reduce the tax load. We again 

had a surplus this year of $74,903. of which DRA will allow 

$30,000. to be applied to appropriations. We have applied 

these to articles in the Warrant which we support and feel 
will help improve operations for the Town. 

HIGHWAY 
The Hill Road Project from Lakin's corner to the bottom of 
EssSlinger's hill is ready for the final coat of black top, 
slated for this Spring. The second phase will be to complete 
the Hill Road from Acheson's to RT 12A, with phase three 

under review to rebuild from Cook Hill to the bottom of 
Acheson,s Hill, probably to be completed in 1993 due to lack 

of funds. 

Negotiations and estimates are underway to straighten out the 
dangerous curve on the Pine Cliff Road in front of Pecora's. 
We have been approached by the Gilsum Selectmen about bringing 
the Mine Road up to State specifications in an effort to turn 

this road over to the State for maintenacne. 

The Road Agent, Selectmen, F.W. Whitcomb, and Pike Industries 

are presently working on a five year plan for all town roads. 
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SELECTMEN PAGE 2 

We have placed in the Warrant, an article to replace the 
1982 1-ton GMC with another four wheel drive vehicle. 
Leasing seems to be cheaper than borrowing. 

As possibly a point of interest, of the $210,000. proposed 
highway budget, $49,000. is received from the State of 
NH Highway Block Grant, our share of the highway gas tax. 

This leaves $161,000. to be raised from taxes. 

TRANSFER STATION 

This yearly expense is a very serious concern to the 
Selectmen and all taxpayers, therefore, we have compiled 
a complete set of appropriations, expenses and savings 
for the years of 1988, 1989, 1990, and 1991. The new 

buildings are included in the yearly expenses. 

APPROPRIATIONS EXPENSES FAVORABLE 
( UNFAVORABLE ) 

1988 $ 70,000. D2 il 7 O Mike SUS oak ee 
1989 75,000. 98,261. (23 (20beu 
Lou 109,000. 104,494. 4,506. 
NEA 94,000. ep rast ra i Be 
TOTALS $348,000. $370,105. Sis2us Goa 

SAVINGS REALIZED FROM RECYCLING, REDUCTION AND REUSE 

Container Reduction (6 months) SS ee 

Station Fees Collected (18 months) 10, 60d. 

Compactor Movement Reduction (12 months) 2, 600% 
Reduction in 1992 Budget 1)’, 006. 

TOTAL S 30,5 

FAVORABLE/(UNFAVORABLE) S$ 7,910. 

As you can see, recycling, reduction and reuse does work, 
but we feel that this area must have proper management, 
dedicated belief in recycling and market know-how. 

The cost of disposable construction waste has increased 

this year, therefore, we had to pass this on to the user. 

The cost of this item is getting more and more expension 
each year. 

The Town is still enjoying a disposal fee of $55.00 per 
ton, which we have guaranteed for a least 2 more years. 
After that, we cannot predict, because there are many 

things that can change this fee. 

We are in favor of Article #15 so that we may continue our 

recycling. This money is from fees charged at our transfer 
station, allowing us to continue and not have to raise 

taxes for recycling. We will be applying for a State 
grant this year with this $10,600. for matching funds 
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PAGE 3 SELECTMEN 

as other towns have. 

As we look at the operation of our transfer station with 

a high of $109,000. in 1990 to our proposed 1992 budget of 
$83,000., we feel as if we have accomplished a great deal, 

and without your help, this would not be possible. As we 
said last year, “thanks to all you recyclers and to you 

who don't - come join us, Mother Earth will thank you." 

We have the new heating system up and running in the 
Town Hall, allowing for a little more space for the Fire 

department. It's not much, but every little bit helps. 

That is one of the reasons we decided to constuct the 
new building at the transfer station to house the tanker 
that would have been stored out-of-doors from November 

through April with no water, when thats when we need the 
water supply most. This also helps to solve a problem 

with our burn permit from the State by having water 

on-sight. 

We were able to replace the roof on the bandstand in Milot 

Green through the generous donation of all the roofing 
supplies by Larry Wilson. Thank you Larry! We plan to 
replace the floor in 1992 along with painting the building. 

At this time, we would like to thank two people who have 
served for many years and now have resigned. George 

Whipple has served our town as fire chief for 5 years, 

and Priscilla Watson for the Vilas Pool Committee. Thank 
you George and Priscilla for the many hours! 

We have a great need for volunteers to serve on several 

boards. If you have some time and would like to get 
involved, we would appreciate this. 

We would like to thank all our Department heads, Town 

Committee members and employees who have worked very hard 

in 1991, because without them - we could not function as 

a team to provide you the services you pay for. 

Respectively submitted, 

James O'Brien, Chairman 

Betty Woodell 

Clarence Meyer 
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TOWN CLERK REPORT 

The Town Clerks office would like to clarify a few 
points about the computer proposed for the office. 

The computer will be used for vehicle registrations, 
whether new, transfers or renewals. The software programs 
available will enable us to process registrations more 
quickly and accurately than we can do manually. It also 
Simplifies the bookeeping involved. 

I was very pleased to finally be able to bring Plates and 
Decals back to Alstead. As you know, there is an additional 
fee charged when we issue you these items, which most of you 
seem quite content to pay for the convenience of getting 
everything done in one place. Normally, this extra fee 
belongs to the Clerk. In these difficult times however, I 
realize that the last thing any of us needs is something 
else to raise our taxes. For this reason, and because I 

believe that computerizing registrations is a wise and 
beneficial move, I am planning to return a large portion 
of the additional fee collected to the town the first year 
to cover the cost of the computer and software, and a 

smaller portion thereafter to cover maintenance and up- 
dating. 

This spares the taxpayer the burden of the costs and at 

the same time enables this office to operate more efficiently. 

I have very much enjoyed my first year as Clerk/Collector and 
would like to thank all of you who have been so supportive 

and patient while I try to get the many responsibilities of 
this office under my belt. 

Respectively submitted, 
Vanessa Weymouth 
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1991 Road Agent's Report 

The first part of the '91 Winter had many frequent storms 
but came to an end earlier than usual. Expecting more 

Winter, left-over sand from the '91-'92 season was used 

OVGENG taret OL 792. Salt costs: for, last. winter: were 
down from the previous year, totaling approx. $13,000. This 

year, we escaped major washouts, resulting in no Federal 

Disaster funds received like previous years. Thank somebody 
I quess it will have to be God. 

Various roads received additional gravel and about nine tons 
of chloride was applied to highly traveled gravel roads for 
compaction and dust control. The new 1989 Ford truck and 
spreader body works extremely well for this, especially 

due to its inside controls for adjusting width of spread and 
amount being applied. This truck has worked well the past 
year, with no mechanical problems. Also, with the truck 

being a diesel, which replaced the old gasoline truck, I 
can see a reduction in total fuel costs for the year. We 
now have two diesel trucks, with hopes that the one ton 
truck will be replaced with one to do similar duties only 
with a heavier chassis and diesel engine. This size truck, 
equipped with plow, 4 wheel drive, and sander dump is depended 
on during ice storms, snow storms and all summer for patching, 

running the rock rake, and general checking of roads and 
miscellaneous maintenance. I hope this new truck will be 
approved at Town Meeting and we will continue to use the 
1972 GMC’:sand truck and the 1969 Ford truck with plow and 

wing, as needed in the Winter. Oldies but goodies still 

fail due to age but I feel with a dependable lighter truck, 
would help get by during a storm, making this the cheapest 

way out of our problems for "now". 

Brush and trees were cut and chipped on Rogers Road, 
South Woods, Newell Pond Road and Slade and Barnett Road with 

a little cut in the Rhoades District. Some of the wood 
salvaged along the way was donated to be burned in the Town 
Garage for back up heat and a place to dry our mittens! Some 
more trees were cut and several narrow spots widened along 

with rock and ledge blasted in Rhoades District. 

The Rhoades District bridge was replaced with an aluminum 
box culvert in-late Fall, as we finally received the Wetland 

Permit from the State by Oct. 4th, and trying to decide which 
method to use and any alternate method was two costly. The 
box culvert cost $9,625. with the remainder of the money to 

do the project and replacement of another 4x40' culvert near 
the Marlow Line came out of regular highway funds. 

Four culverts were replaced on Pleasant Street, ditching, and 

all was repaved by FW Whitcomb. Approx $88,000.00 was spent 
on paving on the tarred section of Vilas Homestead road and 
the Vilas Road was also repaved. Early in the year, the top 

coat was appled to a portion of the Mine Road that was pre- 
viously rebuilt, along with the base coat on the Hill Road. 
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Highway Page 2 

The Hill Road special appropriation was used for underdrain, 
ditching, cutting trees and paving roughly 2800 foot section 
by the “brick house." Also, more underdrain was completed 

from Chip Whitcomb's to the state road and six culverts of 
various sizes (in the wet areas) were replaced. The previous 
mentioned section by the “brick house" should have the top 
coat of pavement put on this summer as it now has only the 
base coat. This road, like others, is not completed but all 
the funds were spent. 

Other culverts of various sizes were replaced on Vilas 
Homestead Road, Pratt and Pine Cliff Road. Miscellaneous 

blasting was done on Slade and Vilas Homestead Road. The 
roadsides were mowed by a private individual. 

Copper Hill was riprapped and the bank replaced for a cost 
of approx. $3200. I hope it holds this time! 

And once again, the new town oarn is appreciated. I hope 
this year, the: salt/sand storage building can be constructed. 
The hold up is not knowing what regulations are going to be 
adopted. For your information - some of neighboring states 
have passed laws in legistration that all salt or salt-treated 
sand will be kept undercover. NH Officials told me several 

years ago that they expect NH to do the same in the near 
future. Some sand undercover would sure speed up the sand- 
ing procedures during these common and much dreaded freezing 

rain storms, that seem to be much more popular than snow, the 
past few years. 

Usually, along in December-January, the Selectmen will ask 

for some imput from the Road Agent as to what road projects, 
bridge replacements, etc., should be done in the comming year 
as part of their preparing the budget. To plan ahead or to 
make suggestions of problems I have noticed and/or have been 

brought to their attention, is difficult, as not knowing as to 

whether I will be in as Road Agent another year. This is why 
I had casually mentioned that some town elected Road Agents' 
terms have been extended to a 3 year term like most other 
town offices. In this way, one could plan ahead, as most 
larger projects seem to take more than 1 year to complete. 
This can be difficult when trees have to be removed, culverts 

replaced, regraveled and hot top replaced in one season. 

If "re-elected" this year, I hope more funds can be raised on 
a special article to be used to do more work in the Hill Road. 
With the underdrain done on the upper part, the decision must 

be made to spend "Big Dollars” to tear up, add new gravel and 
repave or if funds don't allow, then some hot top applied with 

the Town's grader would "help it" for a questionable number of 

years. Of course, the Mine Road needs more work but as of 
this time notice has been given from the State of NH, that 
if this road is brought up to State Specs, they might possibly 
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take it over. This would relieve us future expense and it 

IS the heaviest travelled road in Town. I hope the State 
would accept the portion rebuilt over the last 3 years. 

Other projects that should be done are hot top shimming, 
and oil sealing in the Rhoades District, Slade Hill and 
Pine Cliff Roads. Various roads need culvert replacements, 

and the only bridge needing repair is the Prentice Hill 
bridge, a new deck which we have in stock. 

If someone notices a problem or has an emergency, don't 
be afraid to call the Highway Garage at 835-2428 or my 
own phone - 835-6345. At this time two of the Selectmen 
have highway radios and they can reach us when we are out 
working on the roads, away from the Highway Garage. 

Thank you once again for your patience, cooperation and 

helpfulness during the year. 

Respectively submitted, 
Ken Winham 

Road Agent 
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ZONING OFFICER REPORT 

A total of 63 building permits were issued this year - broken 
down as follows: 

Houses - 9 

Sheds - 15 

Garage - 3 
Additionas - 16 

Deck/Porch- 10 

Barns - 5 

Misc. <- l 

Business - 4 

In accordance with the Alstead Zoning Ordinance, ANY ADDITIONS 
TO AN EXISTING STRUCTURE REQUIRES A BUILDING PERMIT. 

Respectively submitted, 

Rick Renzelman 

Zoning Officer 

REPORT OF ALSTEAD DOG CONSTABLE FOR 1991 

Two hundred and six dogs were licensed in Town this past year. 
Fifty complaints were handled, hopefully to the satisfaction of 

everyone involved. Many complaints are for unrestrained dogs - 
so owners are reminded again of the leash law in the Town of 
Alstead and State of New Hampshire. Also under State Law - 

ALL DOGS MUST BE LICENSED. 

Respectively Submitted, 
Neil Swift, Jr. 

REPORT OF CEMETERY CUSTODIAN 

The cemeteries were raked and the leaves were removed in the 

Spring. The cemeteries were mowed. Graves were loamed and 
seeded. Brush and trees were cut and removed. 

Respectively Submitted, 
Richard G. Clark 
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SHEDD PORTER MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

Alstead, New Hampshire 03602 

Librarian's Report 19491 

Total circulation remained about the same as last year with one 
exception, that of mas;azines. Fewer magazines were circulated, 
indicating the need for a larger variety to choose from, 

Circulation for 1991 

Adult Fiction 5,016 
Adult Non-Fiction Leas 
Junior Books 11,899 
Magazines, ‘Tapes 1,087 

15, 276~ 
Requests for non-fiction books from the State Library numbered 61, 
Registered new adult borrowers numbered 51, 

The updating of the card file was completed and we went on to work 
on discarding worn, damaged and unused books. Some were kept to be 
&iven to the Historical Society and others were passed on to the 
Friends of the Library, who sponsored three successful used book 
sales during the summer, 

The Friends of the Library purchased and gave to us a new display 
rack, one that holds approximately 100 paperback hooks. ‘his is of 
tremendous help. Since the trend for borrowing paperbacks continues, 
it does replace to some extent, the need for buying the more 
expensive hard cover books, 

With the help of Mrs, Edith Mulliner, Mrs. Linda Campbell and with 
the cooperation of the teachers and parents, all grades from the 
Sarah Forter school in Langdon and grades K, 3, 4, and 5 from 
Alstead, wore able to visit the library on a regular basis. We 
thank all those who made this possible. Their help is sincerely 
appreciated. 

The Friends of the Library again supported the Summor Reeding 
Program as well as the story hour, which was held on Wednesday 
afternoons during the summer, ‘he reading program was completed 
by 42 children with an additional 9 older children participating 
in the iCBY Book Mark Frogram. A party was held in August and 
certificates were awarded to those completing the pros;ram. The 
Friends also sponsored the Magic Show which took place at Vilas Pool, 

The continuing financial help received from Mrs. Lora Whitton of 
Sarasota, Florida, Miss Catherine MacDonald of the Marquis George 
MacDonald of New \ork and the generous Memorial donations from 
Mr. Frank Caruso of Cos Cob, Connecticut, and others, enabled us to 
buy many beautiful non-fiction books. We appreciate these gifts. 
They are a welcome addition to our librery,. 

An added attraction are the two cemetery headstone rubbings done by 
the ljth grade under the direction of Mrs. Judy Checchi, and a picture 
for the children's room given by Miss MacDonald. ‘These have been 
framed and will be displayed in the library. 
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The conditicn of the entrance hall continues to worsen repidly 
ond while many of us tend to overlook it, our meny visitors 
sre dnclined to -ring it to our attention. It is hoped that our 
finences will allow it to be repaired in the noar future, 

the tulip bulbs planted last Spring by the Kindergarten children 
avo much pleasure to all. We are hoping that the bulbs will 
have survived the winter ana will again add color to the front 
of the library. 

Wwe welcome Mrs. Julia Cunniff of Langdon. She will offer 
additional help during the visits of the school children as well 
as being able to replace either Fegsy or I in case of illness 
or auring, vacation timo. 

A special thank you to Mary Lou Huffling for her help in 
selecting books, to Pegry and Julia, as well as the ‘'rustees, 
rriends of the Library and the Town of Alstead for the 
continuins support. 

Doris Dustin 

Librarian 

Dorthy Walker, Chairman Library Trustees 
Doris Dustin, Librarian 
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LIBRARY TRUSTEE REPORT 

The trustees met on a regular basis. The officers are 

Chairman - Dorothy Walker, Secretary - Geraldine Swift, 

Treasurer - Marylou Huffling, Building Chairman - Paul 
Thompson with all members on the book committee. 

The sidewalk was built up and resurfaced. Wooden tiers were 
installed around the gardens near the entrance. 

The Librarian and Trustee chairman were both on the Town History 

Committee. This group met once or twice a month at the library, 

to use the reference material compiled by Miss Maybelle Still, 

the Marion Rawson files and others on file in the reference room. 

Grave stone rubbings by the 4th grade children were framed. One 
is of the first school master in Town. 

The hall is in urgent need of repairs. This sould be our next 

large project. 

Thanks to the Friends of the Library for book and food sales and 
their support and gifts. 

Respectively submitted, 
Dorothy Walker, Chairman 
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FRIEND OF THE SHEDD PORTER MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

The active Friends have dwindled to a precious few, but 
we know there are Library friends in the area that could 
become volunteers to help in our endeavors. Even with 

a skeleton crew, we were able to have two very successful 
Book and Bake sales last year. We thank all our recruited 

bakers! We raised enough money to buy a free standing 

paperback book rack (at $550.) to relieve some of the 

strain on the back window sills. We held our Annual Spring 
Tea, with a Mad Hatter Theme, entertaining several visitors 

and guests. We helped the Librarians sort and weed out 
books, and helped check out books a few times when children 

from school had their visit on Library Day. 

Our Summer Reading Program for the children was "Some 
Enchanted Reading" and we even supplied a professional 
Magic Show at Vilas Pool for their entertainment. Our 

end of the year Program Party was well attended and many 
were able to ring the Unicorn, and we had a few heroes of 

the breadstick jousting tournament! There were other fun 
games and activities, ice cream and punch and we all had 
a very good time. 

We hope to continue these programs and activities, but 
we need Readers and activity people for our next Summer 

Reading Program. Bakers and volunteers are needed to sit 

at our tables at various times and places, and we need 

NEW IDEAS. In these money-tight months, we would appreciate 

a donation of your own time, just as well as monetary 
donations. Thanks for your past support and we look forward 
to meeting new Friends. 

Please call the Library at 835-6661 or Lois Sweeney at 
835-2357 for more information. 
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REPORT OF TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS 

A number of dead trees and limbs were cut in Pine Grove and Alstead Center 

Cemetaries. 

Our goals for 1992 are to right fallen and leaning stones, pour new footings, 

repair broken and damaged stones and clean as many as time permits. 

New lots acquired and perpetual care established: 

1990 

Joseph & Janet McGuire $500.00 

Jerry & Thursa Kercewich $800.00 

John R. & Meryll M. Hess $200.00 

1991 

Richard R. & Lottie Campbell $200.00 

James E. & Alice E. Burnham $200.00 

Margaret, John & Pamela Bengtson $200.00 

Lots are available and may be acquired by contacting Richard Clark, Cemetary 

Commissioner,at 835-6814. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Bruce Bellows 

Reginald Clark 

Marie Bender 
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FOREST FIRE REPORT 

As most of you know, you are required to have a FIRE PERMIT 

for burning brush, cooking fires, debris, incinerator and 

grass. 

These are the questions that have to be answered before a 

permit is issued. 

1. What is going to be burned? 
Brush cannot exceed 5 inches in diameter. 

2. Where is it going to be burned? 
How far from nearest structure, trees and dead 

vegetation or overhead phone and power lines? 

3. When do you want to burn? 

Date, time of day - NO BURNING 9:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m. unless raining. 

4. Is material to be burned material resulting from the 

demolition of building? Air Pollution approval 
required? 

5. What do you have for fire protection? 
6. How much help will you have during burn? 
7. Do you own the land where you plan to burn? 

If not, do you have landowner's approval? 

8. If you fire is declared a nuisance, will you be able to 
extinquish same? 

9. Are there any tires or tubes in the material to be burned? 
10. NOTICE! ! Permits issued during rain are void if the; rain 

stops and your fire must be extinquished at that 
11. Be sure fire is completely and totally extinquished. 

A BURIED FIRE IS NOT AND EXTINQUISHED FIRE. 

Starting this year, permits will be issued from 9:00 a.m. to 
7:00 p.m. Thank you for your cooperation on these hours. If you 
have questions regarding fire permits, burning etc., give me a 
call at 835-6839. 

A point of interest might be - that you can burn without a permit 
with good snow cover---SPOTTED COVER DOES NOT COUNT. 

Air Pollution regulations STILL have to be followed. 

SMOKEY THE BEAR SAYS - PLEASE HELP PREVENT FOREST FIRES!! 

Respectively submitted, 
Warren Campbell 

Forest Fire Warden 
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ALSTEAD FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 

In 1991, the fire department was called to two structure fires. 

This ended four or five years without a major fire, which is a 
record the fire department did not want to end. It is both sad 
and costly to lose a home or property to fire. To help eliminate 

these fires, we should think fire safety. Fire prevention is the 
key to success. 

In the past, this report has given you statistics such as how many 
chimney fires, smoke investigation, etc. that we had the past year. 
That is exactly what they are -"statistics". This year, to lower 
these statistics, we should practice good fire prevention. 

Most of us are guilty of overlooking a fire hazard at one time or 
another. We may, without thinking, overload an electrical outlet, 
run extension cords where they might get damaged and cause a short 

circuit or not having something nearby to extinquish a grease fire 

on a stove. 

The fire department is in the process of making some changes and 

fire awareness and prevention is top on the list. We want to be 
of help to the public in any way we can. 

REMEMBER! 352-1100 is the number to call for any emergency. 

Respectively submitted, 

Warren Campbell, Fire Chief 

RESCUE AND AMBULANCE REPORT 

It doesn't seem possible thatanother year has gone by, but 
here it is time again for reports to be written. 

We have had a very busy year with our regular meetings, training 
sessions, fund raising and recertifications. Four of the squad 
had to recerify this year. 

We purchased a ram to go with the jaws. This is used to displace 

the dash, seats or whatever ypu want to move in order to make 

room for getting someone out of a vehicle. We also have our 

defibrillator ordered. I want to thank everyone who so generously 
donated in order that we could purchase this unit. 

If anyone is interested in joining the squad, please contact me 
A2t65)=6039.. 

REMEMBER THE NUMBER to call if you need help is 352-1100. 

Respectively submitted 

Delinda Campbell, Ambulance Captain 
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POLICE REPORT 

The report from the Police Department is not about how many 
accidents were investigated in 1991 or how many domestic com- 
plaints we responded to, it is more exciting than that. We 
have, at last, got our own headquarters where police matters 
can be handled in a business like manner with privacy and 
efficiency. 

The time had come when "mother" wanted access to her own desk 
and privacy of her own home without intrusion. In other words, 
after 30 years of police monopoly in our den at home, she said 
she wanted "it" out: I must admit that there were times when 
I had to bring people into my home for various police related 
reasons, that weren't always at a convenient time and it was 
disturbing to the family environment. 

In August when it was discussed and considered moving the office 
of the selectmen and town clerk to a new location where they 
could have the room they so badly needed, I requested the 
possibility of moving into their old office. The timing was 
perfect: 

By September the former town clerk's office was beginning to 
take on a new look with freshly painted blue walls, three new 
(second hand) desks, a new typewriter and word processor and 
four filing cabinets. The new police station was a reality! 

The convenience of having room to store evidence, file reports, 
a private room for interrogation, etc. can not be measured. 
With Officer Peltier becoming more involved in the Alstead 
Department, the need for a central office was necessary so 
that he, too, could have access to the necessary files and 
equipment when he was on duty. 

An open house was held in November to view the new town offices 
and I welcome anyone who was not able to attend, to come in and 
see our new facility. A plan is being worked on to soon hold 
regular office hours on a given night of each week so that the 
public will be able to come in to get their pistol permits or 
discuss police related problems. There is a telephone at the 
office but calls should continue to come to my home or to 
Mutual Aid if you are in need of assistance. 

At this time I wish to thank Officer Peltier and his wife, Julie, 
for their many hours spent painting and cleaning the new quarters. 
Their interest and enthusiasm is truly appreciated. 

Thank you Dave, for your assistance as a dedicated officer during 
the year. I also wish to thank publicly the police officers in 
surrounding communities that have come forth on many occasions 
to assist when there was a need. It is a great feeling to know 
there is "back up" willing to come if called upon. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Erwin Ward, Chief 
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CONSERVATION COMMISSION REPORT FOR 1991 

Good news out there at Wellman Pond! The deal with the 

landowner (Alex Gardner) and the Land Conservation Investment 

Program has finally been signed and delivered. Alstead is now 

the proud recipient of nearly 300 totally wild acres, including 
most of the pond. Thanks to those who put so much into the 

successful completion of this fine project, our selectmen who 
had to wade through reams of paperwork and tc Ben Allison for 

his persistance and dedication. And of course, we recognize 
and commend this generosity of Alex Gardner, whos land this 
used to be. Wellman Pond is open to the public for recreat- 
ional use. PLEASE CARRY OUT ALL YOUR TRASH. 

Did you hear about the MOOSE in East Alstead this fall? A 

neiaghbor called me up late one afternoon and said that a 

big bull moose had just traisped through her yard and was 
heading for the lake! Larsson (my four year old) and I 

revved up the old truck and headed out the drive ina bit of 
a hurry. Sure enough, we spotted the moose down at the bottom 

of Ben Roman's field getting mighty furious at some fool dog 
who was barking its head off. Well, it (the dog) just about 

got its head kicked off as we watched. Good find for Alstead, 

I should say! 

If you have been up to Pratt Rock lately, you will notice 
what a mighty fine place it is for a stroll to see the view, 

and picnic. We did more major brush work up there this fall, 
with the help of the local folk. We will go back in '92 for 

some more good grooming and we will gladly accept assistance. 
A line up of those gas powered brush cutters would fix that 

place ina hurry! Thank you Peter Rhoades. 

With town funds, we sent 9th grader, Jeremy Lund, to the 
Society for the Protection of NH's Forest YOUTH CONSERVATION 
CAMP. He had a great time and felt it was worth every penny. 
We hope to send another young person this year. Contact us 

if you know of a student who would like to go. 

We worked a bit more on the Water Resource Protection Flan for 

Alstead. Hopefully, the draft copy will be out soon. A Sept- 

ember water test survey of Lake Warren was completed with help 
from neighbors and the State bioiogist. It wiil be good to 
have this data in light of what may be coming up for Lake Warren 
this summer. It has a "dam in disrepair" and has been given an 
order by the State to repair it within one year or else the dam 
will be breached. The Commission helped get local citizens to 
meet and discuss the issue. If you are interested in more 
information, get in touch with the Lake Warren Association. 
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CONSERVATION CONT. 

Our Commission is running on thin air these days. Our ideas 
are overwhelming, but our number is weak. Lots of neat things 

that we could do, but we need help. Come down anytime. We 
gather the first Wednesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the 
new Town Office. All our minutes are public and someday we 

hope to have a public resource file/library located in the new 
OLfiace: 

Respectively submitted, 

Elliot Burch, Chairman/Secretary 

Howard Weeks, Vice Chairman 

David Leonard 

Peter Renzelman 

Mrs. Mary Burroughs 

Children's. Day 1983 
Third Congregational Church 
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ALSTEAD HISTORICAL SOCIETY 

Open house was held on Memorial Day and again in August 

with a Balacony Book and Tag Sale. $265.00 was realized from 
the sale, thanks to the generous gift of the beautiful art 

books from Oscar Binder, and many tag sale items from the 
Ward family and others. 

The 4th grade students toured the museum and the "Kindernook" 

children enjoyed a visit and talk on American Indians. They 
were able to pass around the arrowheads, peace pipe, Indian 
pottery, beads, etc. for a hands on history lesson. 

From the estate of Anna Clark and family came some early farm 

tools, broad axe, plows, wagon jack, beautiful early examples 

of 18th century hand-wrought tools. 

From the estate of Donald Hubbard - over 100's photos - 
most from early glass negatives were received along with 
Alstead Union Fair ribbons and other items from Clarence 
Miller's estate. 

Walpole Historical Society turned over a number of early items 

they had from Miss Maybelle Still, also her personal col- 

lection of elephants, her grandfather's tools, early eyeglasses, 

etc. We appreciate these Alstead treasurers for Our museum. 

The Walpole Historical Society borrowed our Civil War Great 
Coat worn by Henry Partridge, our cannon ball, a Civil War 

knapsack, a field blanket, photos taken during the Civil War, 

medals, etc. These were in their Civil War exhibit during 
the month of July in Walpole. 

Another grave stone rubbing was framed, as were old photos, 

courtesy of Alma Ring. 

From Jim Cook came a 18th century bacon drying rack, which 
was restored by Harold Walker, along with early cheese hoops. 

Also a collection of handmade nails and tools from the Ball 

Carriage Shop. 

Mr. & Mrs. Hall donated a frock coat, cape and other items 

of 19th century clothing from the Rev. Warren Hall family. 
A fine mannequin was purchased to display Rev. Hall's suit, 

Areaecost or S150- 00" 

Historical Society members met regularly and assisted with 

research for the Alstead Town History. 

Respectively submitted, 
Dorothy Walker, Curator 
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ALSTEAD PLANNING BOARD REPORT 

The Planning Board met eighteen times during the year, holding 
eleven regular meetings and seven work meetings. A continued 

slowdown in growth led to another decrease in the number of 
subdivision requests, with four subdivision plats approved in 
1991 compared to six in 1990. None of the plats created a large 
number of new lots. 

Recent amendments to RSA 155-E regulating earth excavation 

(gravel pits) required a permit to be filed by August of 1991 in 
order for an excavation operation to continue. AS a result, five 
gravel pit "grandfathered" permits were issued by the Planning 
Board. 

The Planning Board worked on updating the housing status and 

delineating commercial and agriculture areas in the town, using 

aerial photos and conducting a physical survey. The results will 
help the Board to trace growth patterns in Alstead. 

Southwestern Region Planning Commission has completed a draft 

copy of the Alstead Water Resources Protection Plan. Along with 
assistance from the Conservation Commission, the Planning Board 
is helping to put some finishing touches on the plan which should 
be finalized this year. 

The Zoning Board of Adjustment has held two joint meetings with 
the Planning Board during the year, in order to clarify specific 
articles in the Alstead Zoning ordinances. Four amendments are 

being placed on the ballot at Town Meeting and the Planning Board 

recommends the adoption of these amendments. 

The 1992 budget requests for Planning and Zoning included funding 
for the annual tax map upkeep, which in previous years has been 
budgeted under town office expense. 

The Planning Board needs persons to serve as alternate or full 

members and/or work on planning projects. Anyone interested 
should contact the Selectmen or a member of the Planning Board. 

Respectively submitted, 
Peter Rhoades, Chairman 
Jayne L'Heureux 

Juliana Stevens 
Tim Noonan 

Patricia Adams 
Ralph Renzelman, Jr 

(Ex-Officio Rep) 
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ALSTEAD BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Decreased construction, alteration or change of use 

activity, resulted in only two appeals being heard by the 
Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

One of the most difficult areas of zoning law to understand 

is the concept of unnecessary hardship when applying for a 
variance. Hardship, as defined by law and the New Hampshire 

Supreme Court, has nothing to do with physical or economic 

condition of the owner. Hardship can be defined as a 

needless or unnecessary restriction of a person's right to 

enjoy the lawful use of his property because peculiar char- 
acteristics of the land make it impossible to comply with 
the exact terms of the zoning ordinance. 

Recognizing the confusion that the term hardship causes, the 

board has amended its instructions to Applicants to include 
a much more comprehensive definition of this difficult 
concept. Copies of Instructions to Applicants and the board's 
Rules of Procedure are available from the Town Office. 

The board is available, on an informal basis, at its regularly 

scheduled, monthly meetings (lst Monday of the month @ 7:30 pm) 

for whatever assistance, guidance, information, or help with 

procedures etc. that you may need. While we cannot discuss 
the specific facts of an appeal you may choose to file, we 
will be happy to help you with general information and/or 
procedural information that will make it easier for you to do 
business with us. No appointment is necessary and we would 
encourage everyone to take advantage of this opportunity to 

LeteusS assist you: 

The Zoning Board of Adjustment needs additional Alstead 
residents to serve as alternate members of the board. No 
special knowledge of zoning law is necessary, only a sincere 
desire to provide a public service to your fellow residents 
and the Town of Alstead. Anyone who is interested or has any 

questions should contact the selectmen or a member of the 

board. 

Respectively submitted, 
Peter Vos, Chairman 

Michael Rogers, Vice-Chairman 
Patricia Adams, Clerk 

James Stone, Member 

David Young, Member 
Thomas Smidutz, Alternate 
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1991 VILAS POOL REPORT 

Vilas Pool continues its upward progress toward becoming 

the Town's prime asset. Two basic repairs have yet to be 
accomplished - the painting of the bridge and replacement of 
timbers in the bell tower. When these are accomplished, our 

goal is to turn the field in back of the bell tower into a 
soccer/softball field, volleyball court and a basketball 

court. This way, we can run a sports camp for the benefit 
of our local children and also have it for use of local 
sports-minded adults. 

Projects accomplished this year were the instalation of a 
handicapped access bathroom and access to the pavilion, new 
sink and cabinets in the manager's apartment, leveling of 
the pavilion with new supports under part of it, creation of 

a manager's office and supply room, building a new float and 
two new docks and one new fireplace on the upper level of the 
picnic area. We were helped financially with these projects 
by donations from some generous individuals. 

This coming year will see the continuation of the traditional 
day camp and volleyball camp in July with additional sports 
and swimming during the mornings of August. Swimming lessons 
will also available from time to time. 

The Committee hopes that even more people will be using our 

wonderful pool and picnic grounds. 

Respectively submitted, 

Committee members- Priscilla Watson, Chairman 

Richard Pelletier 

Bud Ross 

Julie Stevens 

Erwin Ward 

Betty Woodell 

Julie Peltier 

David Peltier 
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TAX COLLECTORS REPORT 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 1991 

-DR- LEVIES OF 

UNCOLLECTED TAXES-BEGINNING MARCH 13, 1991 1991 Prior 

PEMIOEL VALUES Foire s fiven sd sah mk eae kN 8c huwiniere ta nish Nal Suny 343,174.50 

PAMUIBUSCRUAXES fe cae fo soe wre «oe clalers ales seg See ee DE ee oe aa 564.85 

Wine e TEMS Oe See TAP gas hs. 6° G Fee eee atein he tn Ge oad wk V22 600 

TAXES COMMITTED TO COLLECTOR 

PEOVER CY MUEKCS estes ie cletele sterols clone ole tetars Cecile Misia orn encore eral 1,867,007.50 

PAMGRUSCMNAXCS- oc. cic sees ois ole ee ele oa elt Oa ee FR ke 6075.00 

MEWEMUCE VS RaSKes" ga Aa eth lte hes Sb ay MEMS PR Eee re aay LEA ai An ars Bae 10,964.43 

ADDED TAXES 

fd TA eae Cea ce Ne na 5 cies Avg in woe Och: oF Ocane LoTR Bie UIE ale ele wate rk 267.24 

OVERPAYMENTS 

RN AKC Soren ww < Wiens sos pies een Vicia al nial eipuiargis'e wsafarsie eee Si ea Be, Ae 

Pier ese Oeee eT ORONPRDELLNOUEN Imalh Xeon eetsiererens retecetaierersters 3,088.42 Ess Paeile de 

TOTAL DEBITS 1.891.062.94 3/8.205.59 

rag ek 

REMITTED TO TREASURER 03/13-91 to 12-31-91 

SAINT UL RNG Cit Pete ae CR ate eee ahclergtetereretur whe eerek” tints mitre Wipe VAG) BIS: S57 OSon o> 
Ara lide | AX: ys fara s ue ste x tae oe BMA eietgte de erates -5,820.00 564.85 

FASANO ST Cees Cees ne ee oak Ge se eae wt ees eae 10,410.66 722.88 
SCOT SSE OXeShs fic aaa oes a a eee ec Teter a alate 3088.42 BI eve oe! 

San SEIN re he tc har ein ts Cae eee ee! ta aus bs 138.00 

eee ees. Saeco ai as) Gehan aMe sania atl tana) ina rain caraty cette TaN) 5510 (PNT Ol 

UNCOLLECTED TAXES END OF FISCAL YEAR 

EMAC TRAMP OXCS 2. oy yucca nye treats aisce a iy efeia.s sanisiaee Bale ain ees tele 3535501 1.04 SAre 
aPIMUISe EAI LAX oct wets 9,415 aie disima so ee Late ek oie cor oiel aS 255.00 
PA IPRT ARC Sees ee tea ce ee ie Fon nee ee aie ant eeiaie 553.78 

TOTAL CREDITS 1,891,062.94 $/8,205.09 
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TAX COLLECTORS REPORT 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 1991 

-DR- Tax Lien on Levies of 

1990 1989 Prior 

Balance of Unredeemed Taxes 

GramaScal) YEGrs “544 «wes teks 609 tacks 82,218.05 34,071.80 

Taxes Sold/Executed to Town 

During Fiscal Year? wa. viisasetvawest ss 182,180.75 

Interest Collected After 

CLGrriEXEQUE LONE ai skunaie pieleles ptalee wea Bet 1,027.00 5, G20a a) 10,313.87 

Overpayments -26 

TOTAL DEBITS 183,208.01 87,876.56 44,385.67 

Ere 

REMITTANCE TO TREASURER 
SURING FISCAL YEAR: 

RECEMDUIONS: wines ccmtasya te meee slob ow aie ale 19,97 1222 32,867.87 33,411.54 

Interest and Costs After Sale ....... wae 1,027.00 5, G20<aa 10,313.87 

AGATEMENLS CUEING eal < assss wa ale on nos yee be, 506.58 

Deedec/to Tow) DUtIng Year a... ss. cua aes 209.724 145.50 153.68 

Unredeemed Taxes End of Year-......220.. 165,798.78 49,204.68 -0- 

TOTAL CREDITS 183,208.01 87,876.56 44,385.67 
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Friodzik & Sanderson 

Professional Association 

accountants & auditors 

January 16, 1992 

To the Members of the 

Board of Selectmen 

Town of Alstead 

Alstead, New Hampshire 

We have audited the financial statements of the Town of Alstead for the year 
ended December 31, 1991 and have issued our report thereon dated January 16, 

1992. In connection with our audit, we reviewed and tested the Town's systems 

of internal accounting control and operating procedures to the extent we 
considered necessary to evaluate the systems as required by generally accepted 

auditing standards. The purpose of our review of these systems was not to 

express an opinion on internal accounting control, and it would not 
necessarily disclose all weaknesses in the system. 

In the following paragraphs, we present our comments and recommendations for 

improving specific aspects of the Town's systems and procedures. We also 

refer you to the Appendix to this letter which explains the purpose of our 

review, its limitations, and the professional standards involved. 

GENERAL 

Typically, a report of this type places a greater emphasis on findings of a 

critical nature. Therefore, to put our comments and recommendations in proper 
perspective, it should be noted that the weaknesses observed are not 

necessarily the result of poor management. Oftentimes, they are due to 

factors outside the control of the Town's personnel, such as organizational 
restrictions, budgetary limitations, or inadequate software systems. We have 

noted many positive aspects of the Town's financial management and procedures 

which are not set forth in this report. 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT POSITION (REPEAT RECOMMENDATION) 

As a follow up to our prior-year comments, we continue to recommend that the 

Town consider a full- or part-time administrative assistant who would provide 

the continuity to ensure the proper supervision of the Town's assets. The 

areas would include: 

ie Reviewing and appraising the soundness, adequacy, and application of 

accounting, financial, and operating controls. 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 
NEW HAMPSHIRE 

LETTER OF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

B. Ascertaining the extent of compliance with established policies, plans, 

and procedures, to include State and Federal statutes where applicable. 

Cc Ascertaining the extent to which the Town's assets are accounted for and 

safeguarded from losses of all kinds. 

D. Supervising and performing the various clerical aspects of the accounting 
functions, including bookkeeping and responsibility for preparing 
periodic financial reports. 

E. Ascertaining the reliability of accounting and other data within the 
organization. 

During the year, the Town did greatly improve its facilities. It now would be 

more practical for the Town to consider the above recommendations. 

TRUST FUNDS 

Some of the bank accounts managed by the Trustees of Trust Funds have cut-off 

dates in the middle of the month. This presents a problem at year end in 
being able to reconcile and prepare the State MS-9 reports. 

We recommend that the Trustees contact the respective banking institutions to 
obtain cut-off bank statements at December 31, to be able to more accurately 

complete the MS-9 form. 

LIBRARY FUND 

As we reported last year, one individual has performed the duties of both the 

bookkeeper and the treasurer. Again, there appears to be a lack of clear 

written authorization for the expenditure of funds by the Trustees. 

We recommend that all cash disbursements be approved by either a manifest 

system in which at least two officials would sign or the checks would be 

signed by at least two officials prior to mailing. This would provide better 

internal accounting controls over the disbursements. 

GENERAL FIXED ASSET ACCOUNTING 

In general, accounting for fixed assets provides information for estimating 

the amount of insurance needed, monitors asset utilization, provides a 
safeguard over the asset, and allows for depreciation to be estimated when 

applicable. The Town does not maintain records for its investment in 

property, plant and equipment. 

Fixed asset accounting should be considered when determination of applications 

to be automated is made in order to comply with generally accepted accounting 

principles. 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 
NEW HAMPSHIRE 

LETTER OF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

In closing, we would like to express our appreciation to those persons whose 

cooperation and assistance during the course of our audit have helped us to 

achieve efficiencies in completing our audit. 

After you have reviewed our report, we would be pleased to meet with you to 
discuss any questions that you might have. 

Very truly yours, 
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Plodzik & Sanderson Professional Association 

193 North Main Street Concord, N.H. 03301 (603) 225-6996 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL PRESENTATION 

To the Members of 

the Board of Selectmen 

Town of Alstead 

Alstead, New Hampshire 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements and the 

combining and individual fund financial statements of the Town of Alstead as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 1991, as listed in the table of 

contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town's 

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 

material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 

for our opinion. 

As described in Note 1B, the general purpose financial statements referred to 

above do not include the General Fixed Assets Account Group, which should be 

included to conform with generally accepted accounting principles. The amount 
that should be recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group is not 

known. 

In our opinion, except that omission of the General Fixed Assets Account Group 

results in an incomplete presentation, as explained in the above paragraph, 

the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 

all material respects, the financial position of the Town of Alstead as of 
December 31, 1991, and the results of its operations (and cash flows of 

nonexpendable trust funds) for the year then ended in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the combining 

and individual fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds 
of the Town as of December 31, 1991, and the results of operations of such 

funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general 

purpose financial statements taken as a whole and on the combining and 
individual fund financial statements. The accompanying financial information 
listed as schedules in the table of contents is presented for purposes of 

additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements of 
the Town. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
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Town of Alstead 

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Presentation 

applied in the audit of the general purpose, combining and individual fund 

financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the financial statements of each of the respective 
individual funds and account groups taken as a whole. 

CLA SRLS 
January 16, 1992 We Qasscraliow 
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EXHIBIT A 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups 
December 31, 1991 

Governmental Fund Types 

Special 
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS General Revenue 

Assets 

Cash and Equivalents $224,785 $36,858 
Investments 

Receivables (Net of 

Allowances for Uncollectibles) 
Interest 

Taxes 546,006 

Accounts yA 2,050 

Intergovernmental 2,484 

Interfund Receivable 2,484 

Prepaid Items 3,158 
Other Debits 

Amount to Be Provided for 

Retirement of General Long-Term Debt 

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $789,744 $41,392 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 2,000 $ 

Accrued Payroll and Benefits 1,714 
Intergovernmental Payable 686,202 

Interfund Payable 2,484 

Deferred Revenue 

General Obligation Debt Payable 

Capital Leases Payable 

Total Liabilities 689,916 2,484 

Equity 

Fund Balances 

Reserved for Endowments 

Reserved for Encumbrances 24,925 

Reserved for Special Purposes 

Unreserved 

Designated for Special Purposes 38,908 

Undesignated 74,903 

Total Equity 99,828 38,908 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

AND EQUITY $789,744 $41,392 
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Fiduciary Account Totals 
Fund Type Group (Memorandum Only) 

Trust General Long- December 31, December 31, 

Funds Term Debt 1991 1990 

$236,656 $ $ 498,299 $ 567,869 

9,076 9,076 9,076 

200 

546,006 529,788 

15,366 15,872 

2,484 2,298 

2,484 1,180 

3,153 2,450 

42,668 42,668 69,278 

$245 732 $42,668 $1,119,536 $1,198,011 

$ $ $ 2,000 $ 1,405 

1,714 Bid, 

639 686,841 165,722 

2,484 1,180 

1,118 

14,000 14,000 28,000 

28,668 28,668 41,278 

639 42,668 735,707 839,214 

182,006 182,006 176,241 
24,925 2179295 

63,087 63,087 51,515 

38,908 38,934 

74,903 64,182 

245,093 383,829 S50719 7 

$245 732 $42,668 $1,119,536 $1,198,011 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Revenues 

Taxes 

Licenses and Permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for Services 

Miscellaneous 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Transfers In 

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

Expenditures 

Current 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Highways, Streets, Bridges 

Sanitation 

Health 

Welfare 

Culture and Recreation 
Capital Outlay 
Debt Service 

Principal 

Interest 

Intergovernmental 

Other Financing Uses 

Operating Transfers Out 

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Excess (Deficienc of Revenues and 

Other Financing Sources Over (Under) 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Fund Balances - January 1 

(As Restated - Note 6) 

Fund Balances - December 31 

nae 

Governmental Fund Types 

General 

$1,924,635 
102,707 
106,399 

7,800 
78,738 

2,220,279 

167,844 
Jin ats 

229,589 
91,709 
27,397 
8,763 
5,184 

718,220 

14,000 
9,156 

1,522,643 

20,078 

2,212,558 

7,721 

92,107 

$_99,828 

Special 

Revenue 

1,304 
80 

28,917 

11,690 

41,991 

1,492 

39,925 



Fiduciary Totals 

Fund Type (Memorandum Only) 

Expendable December 31, December 31, 

Trust 1991 1990 

$ $1,924,635 $2,055,998 

102,707 111,561 
107,703 130,996 

7,880 5,952 

4,590 112,245 112,125 

10,000 21,690 21,447 

14,590 2,276,860 2,438,079 

3,845 171,689 203,044 

37,975 37,400 

231,081 283,468 

91,709 104,494 

27,397 24,582 

8,763 8,390 

45,109 32,988 

718,220 28,745 

14,000 14,000 

9,156 12;015 

1,522,643 1,672,990 

20,678 217,057 

3,845 2,258,420 PE CRE 

10,745 18,440 ( 5,154) 

715,324 206,365 yeh GSE. 

$86,069 $ 224,805 $ 206, 365 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT C 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

General and Special Revenue Funds 

Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Revenues 

Taxes 

Licenses and Permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for Services 

Miscellaneous 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Transfers In 

Total Revenues and 

Other Financing Sources 

Expenditures 

Current 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Highways, Streets, Bridges 

Sanitation 
Health 

Welfare 

Culture and Recreation 

Capital Outlay 

Debt Service 

Principal 
Interest 

Intergovernmental 

Other Financing Uses 
Operating Transfers Out 

Total Expenditures and 

Other Financing Uses 

Excess 

Budget 

$1,889,773 
108,000 
106,399 

5,150 
72,000 

2,181,322 

161,500 
41,350 

226,764 
94,000 
25,197 
10,000 
6,298 

105,725 

14,000 
12,380 

1,522,643 

—___21, 390 

2,241,247 

Deficiency) of Revenues and 

Other Financing Sources Over (Under) 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses ( 

Fund Balances - January 1 

(As Restated - Note 6) 

Fund Balances - December 31 

__92,107 

$32,182 

_ 46 

59,925) 

General Fund 

Variance 
Favorable 

Actual (Unfavorable) 

$1,924,635 $34,862 

102,707 ( S290) 

106,399 
7,800 2,650 

718,738 6,738 

2,220,279 38,957 

167,844 ( 6,344) 
S1,9t0 3,375 

229,589 ( *27925)} 

91,709 2,291 

27,397 ( 2,200) 
8,763 Leal 

5,184 1,114 

718,220 alcove 

14,000 
9,156 3,224 

1,522,643 

20,078 

2,212,558 _28, 689 

7,721 67,646 

92,107 

$99,828 $67,646 



Totals 

Special Revenue Funds aro (Memorandum Only) 
Variance Variance 

Favorable Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ $ $ $1,889,773 $1,924,635 $34,862 
108 ,000 102,707 (53293) 

1,304 1,304 106,399 107,703 1,304 

80 80 5,150 7,880 ZV 130 

28,917 28,917 72,000 107,655 35,655 

11,390 11,690 300 11,390 11,690 300 

11,390 41,991 30,601 ar ioepiie eyooas2l0 69,558 

161,500 167,844 ( 6,344) 

41,350 37,975 3,305 

1,500 1,492 8 228,264 231,081 (22-817) 

94,000 91,709 tare aS BE 

25r 49) Wie 8) ( 2,200) 

10,000 8,763 ae eM 

9,890 39,925 ( 30,035) 16,188 45,109 ( 28,921) 

105,725 18,220 27,505 

14,000 14,000 

12,380 9,156 3,224 

1,522,643 1,522,643 

600 ( 600) 21,390 20,678 712 

11,390 42,017 (_ 30,627) 2,252,637 2,254,575 Lee oso) 

( 26) ( 26) ( 59,925) 1,699 67,620 

38,934 38,934 131,041 131,041 

$38,934 $38,908 ($ 26) $71,116 8=6§_ 138,736 $67,620 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT D 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance 

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Fiduciary 

_Fund Type _ 
Nonexpendable 

Trust Funds 

Operating Revenues 

New Funds LB Br | 

Interest and Dividends 13,426 

Total Operating Revenues 14,679 

Operating Expenses 

Support of Schools 578 

Cemeteries and Other —_5,897 

Total Operating Expenses 6,475 

Operating Income 8,204 

Operating Transfers 

Transfers Out (2393, 612) 

Net Income 6,592 

Fund Balance - January 1 152,432 

Fund Balance - December 31 $159 024 

Total 

(Memorandum Only) 

December 31, 

1990 

$ 2,700 

13,617 

16,317 

491 
6,981 

7,472 

8,845 

(_. 31596) 

7,255 

145,177 

$152,432 

fhe notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

_ 48 



EXHIBIT E 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Statement of Cash Flows 

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Fiduciary Total 

Fund Type (Memorandum Only) 

Nonexpendable December 31, 

Trust Funds 1990 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Interest and Dividends Received $ 13,474 $§ 13,594 

New Funds Received 17253 2,700 

Trust Income Distributions ( 6,550) ( 7,472) 

Operating Transfers Out ( 1,612) ( 390) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 6,565 8,432 

Cash - January 1 144,022 135,590 

Cash - December 31 $150,587 $144 022 

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net 

Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Net Income $9267 592 Sy Ure k) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net 

Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

(Increase) Decrease ip 
Due From Other Funds 1,200 

Increase (Decrease) in 

Due to Other Governments ( 27) ( 23) 

Total Adjustments ( 27) Pelti 

Net Cash Provided by Operations $ 6 565 $ 8 432 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Town of Alstead, New Hampshire was incorporated in 1763 and operates under 

a Selectmen form of government. 

The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to the governmental 
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 

standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 

reporting principles. The more significant of the government's accounting 
policies are described below. 

A. Governmental Reporting Entity 

For financial reporting purposes, in conformity with the National Council 

on Governmental Accounting Statement Number 3, "Defining the Governmental 

Reporting Entity,” the Town of Alstead includes all funds, account 

groups, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities that are controlled 

by or dependent on the Town's executive or legislative branches. Control 
by or dependence on the Town is determined on the basis of budget 
adoption, taxing authority, outstanding debt secured by revenues or 

general obligations of the Town, obligation of the Town to finance any 

deficits that may occur, or receipt of significant subsidies from the 
Town. 

The following organization is not part of the Town and is excluded from 

the accompanying financial report: 

Fall Mountain Regional School District 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds or account 

groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The 

operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self- 

balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 

revenues, and expenditures/expenses, as appropriate. Governmental 

resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based 

upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which 

spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped by 
type in the financial statements. The following fund types and account 
groups are used by the Town: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions of 

the Town are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the Town's 

expendable financial resources, and the related liabilities are accounted 

for through governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon 

determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon net 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

income determination. The following are the Town's Governmental Fund 

Types: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the 

Town. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not allocated 
by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this 

fund. From the fund are paid the general operating expenditures, the 
fixed charges, and the capital improvement costs that are not paid 

through other funds. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the 

proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trust or 

major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or 

regulatory provisions or administrative action. The following funds are 
included in this fund type: 

Vilas Pool 

Arch Pond Committee 

Shedd Porter Memorial Library 

Conservation Commission 

Federal Emergency Management Assistance 

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES 

Fiduciary Funds include Expendable and Nonexpendable Trust Funds. The 

measurement focus of the Expendable Trust Funds is the same as of 

governmental funds. Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for ona 

flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement 

focus, emphasis is placed on the determination of net income, financial 

position and changes in financial position. 

Trust Funds - Trust Funds are used to account for the assets held in 

trust by the Town. The following funds are included in this fund type: 

Nonexpendable Trust Funds 

Town Trusts 

Library Trusts 

School and Other Trusts 

Expendable Trust Funds 

Town Trusts 

Capital Reserve Funds 

ACCOUNT GROUPS 

Account groups are used to establish accounting control and account- 

ability for the Town's general fixed assets and general long-term debt. 

General Fixed Assets Account Group - General fixed assets have been 

acquired for general governmental purposes and have been recorded as 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

expenditures in the fund making the expenditure. These expenditures are 

required to be capitalized at historical cost in a General Fixed Asset 

Group of Accounts for accountability purposes. In accordance with the 

practices followed by most other municipal entities in the State, the 

Town does not maintain a record of its general fixed assets and, 
accordingly, a statement of general fixed assets, required by ge erally 

accepted accounting principles, is not included in this financial report. 

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This group of accounts is 

established to account for all long-term debt of the Town. 

TOTAL COLUMNS (MEMORANDUM ONLY) ON COMBINED STATEMENTS 

Amounts in the "Totals (Memorandum Only)" columns in the combined 
financial statement line items of the fund types and account groups are 

presented for analytical purposes only. The summation includes fund 

types and account groups that use different bases of accounting, includes 

interfund transactions that have not been eliminated and the caption 

"amounts to be provided", which is not an asset in the usual sense. 

Consequently, amounts shown in the "Totals (Memorandum Only)" columns are 
not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total 

resources available or total revenues and expenditures/expenses of the 

Town. 

COMPARATIVE DATA 

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the 

accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of 

changes in the government's financial position and operations. However, 

comparative data have not been presented in all statements, because their 

inclusion would make certain statements unduly complex and difficult to 

understand. 

Basis of Accounting 

The accounts of the Governmental and Expendable Trust Funds are 

maintained and reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 

when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and 

available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be 

determined, and "available" means collectible within the current period 
or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 

period. Application of the “susceptibility to accrual" criteria requires 

judgement, consideration of the materiality of the item in question, and 

due regard for the practicality of accrual, as well as consistency in 

application. Those revenues susceptible to accrual are taxes, 

intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and interest revenue. 

Licenses and permits and most other local source revenues are not 

susceptible to accrual, because generally they are not measurable until 

received in cash. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

liability is incurred. Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay, and 

principal and interest on general long-term debt, are recorded as fund 

liabilities when due. All Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for 

using the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are 

recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 
are incurred. 

Budgetary Accounting 

General Budget Policies 

General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary 

funds are controlled by a formal integrated budgetary accounting system 

in accordance with various legal requirements which govern the Town's 

operations. At its annual meeting, the Town adopts a budget for the 

current year for the General and all Special Revenue Funds, except Arch 

Pond Committee Fund. This budget is adopted on a basis consistent with 

generally accepted accounting principles. 

The budget is used by the Department of Revenue Administration each fall 

to set the tax rate for the municipality. Management may transfer 

appropriations between operating categories as they deem necessary. All 

annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered. 

State Statutes require balanced budgets, but provide for the use of 

beginning General Fund unreserved fund balance to achieve that end. In 

1991, the beginning General Fund balance was applied as follows: 

Unreserved Fund Balance 

Used to Reduce Tax Rate $32,000 

' Beginning Fund Balance - 
Reserved for Encumbrances 21-925 

Total Use of Beginning Fund Balance $59,925 

Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and 

continuing appropriations (certain projects and specific items not fully 

expended at year end) are recognized, is employed in the governmental 
funds. Encumbrances are not the equivalent of expenditures and are 

therefore reported as part of the fund balance at December 31 and are 

carried forward to supplement appropriations of the subsequent year. 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

Ez. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity 

is Cash and Equivalents 

State Statutes authorize the Town to invest excess funds in the 
custody of the Treasurer in obligations of the United States 

Government, in savings bank deposits of banks incorporated under the 

laws of the State of New Hampshire, in certificates of deposit of 

banks incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, or 

in national banks located within this State or the State of 

Massachusetts. These financial statements report investments in 

certificates of deposit and savings bank deposits under the caption 

Cash and Equivalents. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at cost or, in the case of donated 

investments, at the market value on the date of bequest or receipt. 

Receivables 

Revenues for the most part are recorded when received, except for 

the following items for which receivables have been recorded: 

2. Tax revenue is recorded when a warrant for collection is conm- 

mitted to the Tax Collector. 

The National Council on Governmental Accounting, Interpretation 
3, referring to property tax revenue recognition, requires 

disclosure if property taxes receivable, which are to be 

collected beyond a period of 60 days subsequent to year's end, 

are recognized on the balance sheet and not reserved. In 

accordance with the practice followed by other municipal 

entities in the State of New Hampshire, the Town of Alstead 

annually recognizes all taxes receivable at the end of the 

fiscal year unless reserved as explained below. 

The Town believes that the application of NCGA Interpretation 

3, which would result in a decrease in the undesignated General 

Fund unreserved fund balance, would give a misleading 

impression of the Town's ability to meet its current and future 

obligations. On December 7, 1984, the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB), in response to a related inquiry, gave 

justification for this deviation from the generally accepted 
60-day rule on revenue recognition, concluding that the 

circumstances relating to the payment of school tax liabilities 

in New Hampshire were unusual and therefore justified a period 

of greater than sixty days. This practice is consistent with 
the previous year. 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

As prescribed by law, the Tax Collector places a lien on 

properties for all uncollected property taxes in the following 

year after taxes are due. The lien on these properties has 

priority over other liens and accrues interest at 18% per 

annum. 

If property is not redeemed within the two-year redemption 
period, the property is tax-deeded to the Town. 

A receivable for such liens is recognized, with no allowance 

for uncollectibles due to the process of deeding. 

Management, through a comparison of historical trends, has 

recognized a reserve of $6,000 representing potential 
abatements of property tax receivables for the tax levy of 

1991. 

b. Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in the year 
earned. 

= Certain grants received from other governments require that 

eligible expenditures be made in order to earn the grant. 

Revenue for these grants is recorded for the period in which 

eligible expenditures are made. 

a: Various service charges (transfer station and planning board) 
are recorded as revenue for the period when service was 

provided. The receivables for such services are shown on the 

balance sheet net of an allowance for estimated uncollectibles 

calculated at 20% of the receivable at December 31, 1991. 

Interfund Recelvables and Payables 

During the course of normal operations, the Town has transactions 

between funds, including expenditures and transfers of resources. 

The accompanying governmental and fiduciary fund financial 

statements reflect such transactions as transfers. To the extent 

that certain transactions have not been paid or received as of 
December 31, balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable 

have been recorded. 

Long-Term Liabilities 

All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for 

on a spending or “financial flow" measurement focus. This means 

that only current assets and current liabilities are generally 

included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net 

current assets) is considered a measure of "available spendable 

resources". Governmental fund operating statements present 

increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

(expenditures and other uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, 
they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of available 

spendable resources during a period. 

General obligation bonds and other forms of long-term debt supported 

by general revenues are obligations of the Town as a whole. 
Accordingly, such unmatured obligations of the Town are accounted 

for in the General Long-Term Debt Group of Accounts. 

6. Fund Equity 

The portion of fund balance which has been legally segregated for a 

specific future use, or which indicates that a portion is not 
appropriable for expenditures, is shown as reserved. The following 

reserves were used by the Town during the year: 

Reserved for Endowments - represents the balance of Nonexpendable 

Trust Funds of which the principal must be held for investment and 

for which only the income may be expended for specific purposes. 

Reserved for Encumbrances - is used to account for open purchase 

orders, contracts and other commitments at year end for which goods 

and services have not been received. 

Reserved for Special Purposes - is used to account for unencumbered 

balance of restricted funds. These include the uncommitted balances 
of the Town's Expendable Trust Funds. 

Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses 

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued except for 

miscellaneous fees, permits, fines and charges for services which are 

reported on the cash basis in the General Fund. Property taxes are 

reflected on the modified accrual basis of accounting as explained above. 

2 - ASSETS 

Cash and Investments 

At year end, the carrying amount of the Town's cash deposits is $498,299 

and the bank balance is $504,500. Of the bank balance, $298,955 was 

covered by Federal depository insurance and $205,545 was uninsured. 

The Town is further authorized to invest Trust Funds, except Capital 
Reserve Funds, in obligations of political subdivisions and stocks and 

bonds that are legal for investment by New Hampshire savings banks. 
Capital Reserve Funds must be kept separate and not intermingled with 

other Trust Funds. Capital Reserve Funds may be invested only in savings 

bank deposits of New Hampshire banks, or in United States or State of New 

Hampshire bonds or notes. 

56 



TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

Investments, in all instances, are stated at cost or, in the case of 

donated investments, at market value at the time of bequest or receipt. 

Investments at year end are as follows: 

Carrying Market 
Amount Value 

Mutual Fund: $9,076 $85,477 

Property Taxes 

The property tax year is from April 1 to March 31 and all property taxes 
are assessed on the inventory taken in April of that year. 

The Town subscribes to the semi-annual method of tax collection as 

provided for by RSA 76:15-a. Under this method, tax bills are sent on or 

around May 1 and November 1 of each year, with interest accruing at a 

rate of 12% on bills outstanding for more than thirty days. 

The May 1 billing is considered an estimate only and is one half of the 

previous year's tax billing. The remaining balance of taxes due is 

billed in the fall after the State Department of Revenue Administration 

has calculated and approved the Town's tax rate for the fiscal year. 

Annually, the New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration, in 

conjunction with the Town, establishes and raises through taxation an 

amount for abatements and refunds of property taxes, known as overlay. 

This amount is reported as a reduction in tax revenue and is adjusted by 
management for any tax reserves at year end. The property taxes 

collected by the Town include taxes levied for the Fall Mountain Regional 
School District and Cheshire County, which are remitted to these 
governmental units as required by law. The ultimate responsibility for 

the collection of taxes rests with the Town. 

Interfund Receivables/Payables 

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 

1991 are as follows: 

Interfund Interfund 

Fund Receivable Payable 

General Fund $2,484 $ 

Special Revenue Fund 

Federal Emergency 

Management Assistance 2,484 

Totals $2,484 $2,484 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

NOTE 3 - LIABILITIES 

A. Intergovernmental Payable 

The Town has recorded $686,146 as an intergovernmental payable, which 

represents the balance of the school district assessment due to be paid 

to the Fall Mountain Regional School District during the six-month period 
ending June 30, 1992. Also, $56 is due the State for dog fees collected, 

and $639 represents School Trust Funds held by the Trustee of Trust 

Funds. 

Retirement Plan 

The Town of Alstead participates in the I.C.M.A. retirement plan. 
Currently two employees are members. Both the Town and the employees 

contribute 5% of the gross wages for these employees. The contribution 

requirements for the year ended December 31, 1991 were $5,184, which 

consisted of $2,592 from the Town and $2,592 from employees. 

Long-Term Debt 

x General Obligation Debt 

The following is a summary of general obligation debt transactions 

of the Town for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991. 

General Obligation Debt Payable, January 1, 1991 $28,000 

General Obligation Debt Retired 14,000 

General Obligation Debt Payable, December 31, 1991 $14,000 

General obligation debt payable at December 31, 1991 is comprised of 

the following individual issue: 

$70,000 1987 Fire Apparatus Note 

due in annual installments of 
$14,000 through November 13, 1992; 

interest at 8.5% $14,000 

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation debt 
outstanding as of December 31, 1991, including interest payments, 
are as follows: 
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TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1991 

Annual Requirements To Amortize General Obligation Debt 

Fiscal Year Ending General Obligation Debt 
December 31, Principal Interest Total 

1992 $14,000 $1,193 $15,193 

All debt is general obligation debt of the Town, which is backed by 
its full faith and credit. 

Legal Debt Margin 

According to State Law, Town borrowing (exclusive of those 

exceptions allowed under the provision of the Municipal Finance Act) 
may not exceed one and seventy-five hundredths percent (1.75%) of 

the valuation of property based upon the applicable last locally 

assessed valuation of the municipality as equalized by the 
Commissioner of Revenue Administration. At December 31, 1991, the 

Town of Alstead is using an equalized value of $93,322,643 and a 

legal debt margin of $1,633,146. 

Capital Lease Agreements for Equipment 

The Town has entered into a lease-purchase agreement for a highway 

truck, which provides for annual principal and interest payments as 
follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
December 31, Principal Interest Total 

1992 $13 327 PA $16,264 

1993 14,941 pees Wess 16,264 

Totals $28,668 $3,860 $32,528 

Payments of $12,610 principal and $3,654 interest were made in the 

fiscal year ending December 31, 1991. The lease-purchase agreement 

contains a non-appropriation funding clause whereby, in the event no 
funds or insufficient funds are appropriated by the Town, the lease 

shall terminate without penalty or expense to the Town. 

Total Long-Term Debt 

General Obligation $14,000 
Capital Leases Payable 28,668 

Total $42,668 
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NOTE 4 - FUND EQUITY 

Reservations of Fund Balances 

Reserve for Encumbrances 

The General Fund reserve for encumbrances at December 31, 1991 is detailed in 

Exhibit A-2 and totals $24,925. 

Reserved for Special Purposes 

The $63,087 of fund balances reserved for special purposes represents $60,887 

of Capital Reserve Funds legally reserved for specific future purposes, and 

$2,200 of the Expendable Town Trust Fund balance reserved for the writing of 

the Town history. 

Reserved for Endowments 

The $182,006 reserved for endowments represents the balance of Trust Funds 

which must be held for investment or expended for specific purposes. 

Designated for Special Purposes 

The $38,908 designated for special purposes represents Special Revenue Fund 

balances which management intends to use in the subsequent years. 

Trust Funds 

The principal amount of all Nonexpendable Trust Funds is restricted either by 
law or by terms of individual bequests, in that only income earned may be 

expended. The Town's Nonexpendable and Expendable Trust Funds at December 31, 

1991 are detailed as follows: 

Nonexpendable 

Purpose Principal Income 

Warren Monument and School Fund So) Sy abe $ 139 

Kimball Library Fund 2,465 

Carpenter Library Fund 500 

C. F. Warren Library Fund 5,650 
Cemetery Trust Funds 84,942 47,825 

Wells and Smith 

Cemetery and School Funds 510 
Whitton Endowment Library Fund eo ea 40 

Total Nonexpendable $111,020 $48,004 
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Expendable 

Capital Reserve Funds 
Highway Equipment $ 26,790 

Reappraisal 34,097 

Other Expendable 

Maybelle H. Still 
Memorial Fund - Town History 25,182 

Total Expendable $ 86,069 

Total All Trust Funds $245,093 

On January 3, 1985, the Bellows Falls Trust Company was appointed Successor 

Trustee of the Charles N. Vilas Trust, to act in place and stead of Citibank, 
N.A. and United States Trust Company. The market value of the trusts as 

reported by the bank at December 31, 1991 is $1,765,517. The reports of the 

Bellows Falls Trust Company were not examined by Plodzik & Sanderson 
Professional Association. 

NOTE 5 - LITIGATION 

There are various claims and suits pending against the Town which arise in the 

normal course of the Town's activities. In the opinion of management, the 
ultimate disposition of these various claims and suits will not have a 

material effect on the financial position of the Town. 

NOTE 6 - RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND 

The unreserved-undesignated fund balance at December 31, 1990 was restated as 

follows: 

Fund Balance - December 31, 1990 $76,843 

Adjustment to record the decrease in 

the balance of taxes receivable due 

to the Town either abating or tax 

deeding properties during the year (51206619 

Fund Balance, As Restated - December 30, 1990 $64,182 
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EXHIBIT A-1 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

General Fund 

Statement of Estimated and Actual Revenues 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Over © 
(Under) — 

REVENUES Estimated Actual Budget 

Taxes 

Property and Inventory SI58527108 $1,851,603 ($ 1,170)) 
Yield 7,000 10,965 3,965 
Land Use Change 5,000 6,075 1,074 

Interest and Penalties on Taxes 25,000 55,992 30,992 

Total Taxes 1,889,773 1,924 5635 34,862 

Licenses and Permits 
Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 105,000 100,096 ( 4,904) 
Dog Licenses 1,000 1,065 65 

Business Licenses, Permits and Fees 2,000 Peed he 1 ( 454) 
Total Licenses and Permits 108,000 102,707 (, 5,293m 

Intergovernmental Revenues 

State 

Shared Revenue 20,227 20,227 

Business Profits Tax 38,024 38,024 

Highway Block Grant 47,991 47,991 
Reimb. a/c State-Federal Forest Land 157 157 

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 106,399 106,399 

Charges for Services 
Income From Departments 5,000 7,710 2,710 
Rent of Town Property 150 90 ( 60) 

Total Charges for Services 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

Interest on Deposits 8,000 11,133 3,1339 

Trust Fund Income 64,000 63,765 ( 235) 

Welfare Reimbursements 340 340 
Donations 3,500 3,500 

Total Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total Revenues 

Unreserved Fund Balance 

Used to Reduce Tax Rate 

Total Revenues and Use of Fund Balance 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Gears 

72,000 

2,161,322 

__32, 000 

$2,213,322 

__18, 7138 

$2,220,279 
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EXHIBIT A-2 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

' General Fund 

Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Encumbered Appropriations 

From 1990 1991 

Current 

General Government 

Executive Office $ § 42,122 

Financial Administration 13,478 

Election and Registration Expenses 1,300 
Cemeteries 1,000 
General Government Buildings 20,900 
Planning and Zoning 1,500 5,000 

Legal Expenses 3,500 

Employee Benefits 21,800 

Insurance 51,200 

Total General Government 1,500 160,000 

Public Safety 

Police Department 1,500 19,000 

Fire Department 20,000 
Forest Fires 800 

Emergency Management 50 

Total Public Safety 1,500 39,850 

Highways, Streets, Bridges 

Town Maintenance 203,500 

Street Lighting 7,000 

Truck Lease 

Total Highways, Streets, Bridges __ 226,764 

Sanitation 
Solid Waste Disposal 85,000 

Recycling 9,000 

Total Sanitation 

Health 

Health Department 

Ambulance and Rescue 

Animal Control 

Total Health 

Welfare 

General Assistance 

Culture and Recreation 
Parks and Recreation 

Patriotic Purposes 
Conservation Commission 

Total Culture and Recreation 

64 

94 Oe 

11,421 
12,976 

800 
25,197 

10,000 



Azaat tl? 

(Over) 
Expenditures Encumbered Under 

Net of Refunds To 1992 Budget 

$ 44,168 $ ($2,046) 
1 ey 

hg iy (a 4°32) 
940 60 

21,606 ( 706) 
5,004 1,496 

8,237 ( 4,737) 
27,871 ( 17) 
51,102 98 

167,844 ( 6,344) 

18,608 1,892 
19,187 813 

180 620 

50 
S779 15 37375 

206,526 ( 3,026) 
6,799 201 

16,264 

229,589 (ea7o25) 

82,742 2,258 

8,967 33 

91,109 ayaot 

117200 2i5 
15,688 ater 4, 

503 297 
Z1e391 (_ 2,200) 

8,763 tao 

2,615 885 
185 

2,384 229 

5,184 1,114 
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EXHIBIT A-2 (Continued) 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

F General Fund 

Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Encumbered Appropriations 
From 1990 1991 

Capital Outlay 
Salt Shed 24,925 
Computerization of Town Maps 3,800 

Fire Department Tanker 15,000 
Municipal Building Heating System 12,000 
Rhoades District Bridge 10,000 
Hill Road Repairs 40,000 

Total Capital Outlay 24,925 80,800 

Debt Service 
Principal of Long-Term Debt 14,000 
Interest Expense - Long-Term Debt 2,380 

Interest Expense - Tax Anticipation Notes 

Total Debt Service 
___10,000 
_26, 380 

Intergovernmental 

School District Assessment 1,372,292 

County Tax Assessment 150,351 

Total Intergovernmental 1,522,643 

Other Financing Uses 

Operating Transfers Out 

Interfund Transfers 

Special Revenue Funds 

Shedd Porter Memorial Library 7,000 
Federal Emergency Management Assistance 1,500 

Vilas Pool 2,890 
Expendable Trust Funds 

Capital Reserve Funds 

Total Operating Transfers Out 
—__10,000 
—___ 21,390 

Total Appropriations, 
Expenditures and Encumbrances $27,925 $2,213,322 
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A-2 (2) 

(Over) 
Expenditures Encumbered Under 

Net of Refunds To 1992 Budget 

24,925 

3,800 
15,000 
10,045 ono 

10,000 
oe ab) 625 
78,220 24,925 2,580 

14,000 
Be ven 59 
6,835 3,165 

23,156 3,224 

oie; e%e 

150, 351 pe De 

1,522,643 Lakai scl 

7,000 
188 eae 

2,890 

10,000 
20,078 sig 

$2,212,558 $24,925 $3,764 

notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A-3 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

General Fund 

Statement of Changes in Unreserved - Undesignated Fund Balance 
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Unreserved - Undesignated Fund Balance - 

January 1 (As Restated - Note 6) $64,182 

Deduction 

Unreserved Fund Balance Used 

to Reduce the 1991 Tax Rate 32,000 

$32,182 

Addition 

1991 Budget Summary 

Revenue Surplus (Exhibit A-1) $38,957 

Unexpended Balance 

of Appropriations (Exhibit A-2) 3,764 

1991 Budget Surplus 42,721 

Unreserved - Undesignated 

Fund Balance - December 31 $74,903 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B-1 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
December 31, 1991 

Shedd Porter 

Vilas Arch Pond Memorial 

ASSETS Pool Committee Library 

Cash and Equivalents $13,811 $11,770 $7,480 

Receivables 

Interest 

Accounts 2,050 

Intergovernmental 

TOTAL ASSETS $15,861 $11,770 $7,480 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities 

Interfund Payable $ $ $ 

Deferred Revenues 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
Fund Balances 

Unreserved 

Designated for Special Purposes 15,861 11,770 7,480 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

AND EQUITY 915,861 $11,770 $7,480 
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Federal 

Emergency Totals 

Conservation Management December 31, December 31, 

Commission Assistance 1991 1990 

$3,797 $ $36,858 $36,025 

200 

2,050 se 

2,484 2,484 2,298 

$3,797 $2,484 $41 392 $41 232 

$ $2,484 $ 2,484 S i180 

———_ pasar, ey eek! 
aie 2,484 RAAT Ae ee a, 298 

SPI ot 38,908 38,934 

$3,797 $2,484 $41,392 $41,232 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B-2 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Vilas 

Pool 

Revenues 

Intergovernmental Revenues $ 

Charges for Services 

Miscellaneous 19,245 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Transfers In 2,890 

Total Revenues and 

Other Financing Sources 22,135 

Expenditures 

Current 

Highways, Streets, Bridges 

Culture and Recreation 24,103 

Other Financing Uses 

Operating Transfers Out 

Total Expenditures and 

Other Financing Uses 24,103 

Excess (Deficienc of Revenues and 

Other Financing Sources Over (Under) 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses ( 1,968) 

Fund Balances - January 1 17,829 

Fund Balances - December 31 $15,861 

Arch Pond 

Committee 

812 

55 

ties! 

a2, 073 

$11,770 

Shedd Porter 

Memorial 

Library 

8,612 

tiisor 

15,767 

600 

16,367 

990 

6,490 

$_7,480 



Federal 

Emergency Totals 

Conservation Management December 31, December 31, 

Commission Assistance 1991 1990 

$ $1,304 $ 1,304 $21,696 
80 

195 287911 25,148 

188 11,690 11,447 

195 1,492 41,991 58,291 

1,492 1,492 24,654 
39,925 28,694 

600 1,200 

1,492 42,017 54,548 

195 ( 26) 3,143 

3,602 38,934 35191 

$3,797 -0- $38,908 $38,934 

‘The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B-3 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

- Special Revenue Fund - Vilas Pool 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Revenues 

Miscellaneous 
Vilas Trust 

Interest Income 

Donations 

Other 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Transfers In 

General Fund 

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

Expenditures 

Current 

Culture and Recreation 
Salaries and Benefits 
Materials and Supplies 
Utilities 
Maintenance and Repairs 

Capital Acquisitions and Improvements 

Other 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

and Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balance - January 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 

The notes to the financial statements are an 

74 

$15,239 
762 

2,861 
383 

2,890 

$22,135 

$ 6,939 
LT51 

711 
1,910 
9,755 

3,057 

24,103 

( 1,968) 

17,829 

$15,861 

integral part of this statement. 



EXHIBIT B-4 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Special Revenue Fund - Arch Pond Committee 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Revenues 

Miscellaneous 

Interest Income $ 812 

Expenditures 

Current 

Culture and Recreation 

Rubbish Removal $40 

Other TEED: 

Total Expenditures 55 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures rhty 

Fund Balance - January 1 Li 5013 

Fund Balance - December 31 $11,770 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B-5 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Special Revenue Fund - Shedd Porter Memorial Library 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Revenues 

Charges for Services 

Copier Income $ 80 

Miscellaneous 
Interest & Dividends 194 

Shedd Porter Trust 6,415 

Donations 2,056 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Transfers In 

General Fund 7,900 

Trust Funds 17612 

Total Revenues and 

Other Financing Sources $17,357 

Expenditures 

Current 

Culture and Recreation 

Salaries and Benefits $7,649 

Other Administrative Costs 949 

Books, Periodicals and Programs 4,895 

Operations and Maintenance of Facilities 2,274 

Other Financing Uses 

Operating Transfers Out 

General Fund 600 

Total Expenditures and 

Other Financing Uses 16,367 

Excess of Revenues and 

Other Financing Sources Over 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 990 

Fund Balance - January 1 6,490 

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 7,480 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B-6 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Special Revenue Fund - Conservation Commission 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Revenues 

Miscellaneous 
Interest Income Sa.195 

Fund Balance - January 1 3,602 

Fund Balance - December 31 $3,797 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B-7 

2 TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Special Revenue Fund - Federal Emergency Management Assistance 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Revenues 

Intergovernmental 

Federal Emergency Management $1,118 
State Emergency Management 186 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Transfers In 

General Fund 188 

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 1,492 

Expenditures 

Current 

Highways, Streets, and Bridges 4,492 

Excess of Revenues and Other 
Financing Sources Over Expenditures =O= 

Fund Balance - January 1 pila. imctd 

Fund Balance - December 31 == 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

78 



EXHIBIT C-1 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Trust Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
December 31, 1991 

Trust Funds 

Expendable Nonexpendable 

Capital 
ASSETS Town Reserve Town 

Cash and Equivalents $25,182 $60,887 $150,587 

Investments 9,076 

TOTAL ASSETS $25,182 $60,887 $159,663 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities 
Intergovernmental Payable $ $ $ 639 

Equity 
Fund Balances 

Reserved for Endowments 22,982 159,024 

Reserved for Special Purposes 2,200 60,887 

Total Equity 257182 60,887 159,024 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

AND EQUITY $25,182 $60,887 $159,663 

79 



C= 

Totals 

December 31, December 31, 

1991 1990 

$236,656 $219,346 

9,076 9,076 

$245,732 $228,422 

$ 639 $ 666 

182,006 176,241 

63,087 Slo. 

245,093 421,156 

$245,732 $228 422 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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|Revenues 

Interest and Dividend Income 

Other Financing Sources 
Operating Transfers In 

Total Revenues and 

- Other Financing Sources 

Expenditures 
Current 

General Government 

Excess (Deficienc of Revenues 

and Other Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures 

| rund Balances - January 1 

Fund Balances - December 31 

EXHIBIT C-2 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

918 

3,845 

(| 2,927) 

_28, 109 

$25,182 

Fiduciary Fund Type 
' Expendable Trust Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Capital 

Reserve 

Funds 

$ 3,672 

10,000 

13,672 

13,672 

47,215 

$60,887 

Totals 

December 31, December 31, 

1991 1990 

$ 4,590 toy ae ts 

10,000 10,000 

14,590 152536 

3,845 (Peek 

10,745 8,301 

715,324 67,023 

$86,069 $75,324 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

81 



SCHEDULE I 

TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

Summary of Town Clerk's Account 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Motor Vehicle Permits Issued $100,106 

Dog Licenses and Penalties 
Town's Share $961 
State's Share 104 

1,065 

All Other Collections 1,546 

Remittances To Treasurer $102,717 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 
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NOTES 4 



SCHEDULE II 
TOWN OF ALSTEAD 

. Trust Funds 

Summary of Principal, Income and Investments 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1991 

Principal 

Balance Balance 

January 1, Additions December 31, 
1991 (Withdrawals) 1991 

Cemetery Trust Funds 

Perpetual Care $ 84,342 $ 600 $ 84,942 

Library Funds 

Kimball Fund 2,465 2,465 
Carpenter Fund 500 500 

C. F. Warren Fund 5,650 5,650 

Whitton Endowment Fund 11,038 653 11,691 

Total Library Funds 19,653 653 20,306 

School and Other Funds 

Warren Monument and School Fund 5,262 5,262 

Kingsbury School Fund 606 606 
Wells and Smith 

Cemetery and School Funds 510 510 

Maybelle H. Still 

Memorial Fund - Town History 13,715 13; 732 
Total School and Other Funds 20,093 20,093 

Capital Reserve Funds __ 40,000 10,000 50,000 

Totals $164,088 $11,253 $175,341 
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Income Balance of 

Balance Balance Principal 

January 1, Earned Expended December 31, and Income 

1991 During Year During Year 1991 December 31, 1991 

$42, 363 HG igs Be] SLEW! $47,825 $1327167 

214 214 2,465 
43 43 500 

425 425 5,650 

40 930 930 40 LL bs 

40 1,612 1,612 40 20,346 

262 414 537 139 5,401 

60 48 75 33 639 

41 41 510 

14,394 918 3,845 11, 467 25-182 

14,716 1,421 4,498 11,639 31,132 

ee 3,672 10,887 60,887 

$64,334 $18 064 $12,007 $70,391 $245 732 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 
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OPEN HOUSE NOVEMBER 3rd, 
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DEDICATED TO AUSTIN FLETCHER 

Resident of East Alstead, Farmer, Plumber and for many 

years served as Town Moderator. Known and remembered for 

his quick wit and New England sense of Humor. 
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